
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Council 
 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 8 NOVEMBER 
2012 
 

Time: 7.30 PM 
 

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To all Members of 
the Council 
 
 

  
Published: Wednesday, 31 October 2012 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

 Contact:  Lloyd White, Head of 
Democratic Services 
Tel: 01895 556743 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: lwhite@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=117&Year=2012 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

Prayers 
 
To be said by the Reverend Dr June Hughman 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes  1 - 10 

 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2012  
 

 

3 Declarations of Interest   

 To note any declarations of interest in any matter before the Council  
 

 

4 Mayor's Announcements  

5 Public Question Time  11 - 12 

 To take questions submitted by members of the public in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 10.  
 

 

6 Report of the Head of Democratic Services 13 - 38 

7 Hillingdon Local Plan  39 - 266 

 To consider the recommendations of Cabinet  
 

 

8 Members' Questions  267 - 268 

 To take questions submitted by Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rule 11  
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
 
COUNCIL 
 
6 September 2012 
 
Meeting held at Council Chamber - Civic Centre, High 
Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
Councillor Michael Markham (Mayor) 

Councillor Allan Kauffman (Deputy Mayor) 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   
Councillors: David Allam 

Lynne Allen 
Bruce Baker 
Tim Barker 
Richard Barnes 
Josephine Barrett 
David Benson 
Jonathan Bianco 
Lindsay Bliss 
Sukhpal Brar 
Wayne Bridges 
Mike Bull 
Keith Burrows 
Paul Buttivant 
George Cooper 
Judith Cooper 
Philip Corthorne 
Brian Crowe 
Peter Curling 
Catherine Dann 
 

Jazz Dhillon 
Janet Duncan 
Beulah East 
Neil Fyfe 
Janet Gardner 
Sid Garg 
Roshan Ghei 
Dominic Gilham 
Raymond Graham 
Paul Harmsworth 
Shirley Harper-O'Neill 
John Hensley 
Henry Higgins 
Patricia Jackson 
Phoday Jarjussey 
Sandra Jenkins 
Judy Kelly 
Peter Kemp 
Kuldeep Lakhmana 
Eddie Lavery 
 

John Major 
Carol Melvin 
Douglas Mills 
Richard Mills 
John Morgan 
June Nelson 
Susan O'Brien 
Mary O'Connor 
David Payne 
Ray Puddifoot 
Andrew Retter 
John Riley 
David Routledge 
Avtar Sandhu 
Robin Sansarpuri 
Scott Seaman-Digby 
David Simmonds 
Brian Stead 
Michael White 
David Yarrow 
 

 OFFICERS PRESENT:  Hugh Dunnachie, Fran Beasley, Jean Palmer, Linda 
Sanders, Paul Whaymand, Raj Alagh, John Seekings, Mark Braddock, Trevor 
Langworth, Lloyd White and Nikki O’Halloran. 
 

20. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Khursheed, Lewis and 
MacDonald. 
 

21. MINUTES  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2012 be agreed as 
a correct record. 
 

22. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 The Mayor advised that he would be writing to Councillor Khursheed and his family on 
behalf of the Council to wish him a speedy recovery following a recent illness. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



  
The Mayor invited the Leader of the Council to make a statement.  The Leader noted 
that Great Britain’s Olympic and Paralympic teams’ achievements over the last few 
weeks had been incredible.  He congratulated Natasha Baker from Cowley on winning 
two equestrian Paralympic gold medals which was a remarkable and inspirational 
achievement.  The Leader advised that he had written to Natasha to invite her to 
accept the Freedom of the Borough. 
 

23. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Councillor Puddifoot noted that, at the Annual Council meeting in May 2012, he had 
advised that changes were needed to the directorate structure, Cabinet portfolios and 
the committee structure.  These changes would be formulated over the next few 
weeks and reported to Council in November 2012.  
 
Councillor Puddifoot moved the recommendations as set out on the Order of 
Business.  This was seconded by Councillor Simmonds and: 
 
RESOLVED:  That: 
 
(i)  the Urgency decisions detailed in the report be noted. 

 
(ii) the Cabinet Member for Education and Children’s Services, through the 

Cabinet Member decision making process, be designated if a Councillor 
(present or within the past four years) or officer seeks authorisation to be 
appointed to the office of Director or Governor at an Academy. 

 
(iii) the following delegation be approved: 
 

In respect of a Council capital project or revenue service, where an emergency 
or exceptionally urgent situation arises in relation to a commercial contract 
where: 
 

a) The Leader and Chief Executive agree the urgency; 
b) There is no Cabinet meeting imminent; 
c) Any delay would seriously jeopardise the Council’s finances or its ability to 

deliver services and; 
d) A previous executive decision has been made or proposed in respect of the 

capital project or service provision concerned, 
 

authority is granted to the Chief Executive, subject to the written agreement of 
the Leader of the Council, to incur expenditure and make any new and 
necessary contractual decisions in order to secure the successful delivery of the 
project or service. 
 
In such instances, the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing Orders can 
be waived. Any decisions taken must be reported to a subsequent Cabinet 
meeting for formal ratification. 
 
This delegation will be added to Part 3 – Officer Scheme of Delegations. 

 
(iv) the change to the Standing Orders and related sections of the Council's 

Constitution, as set out below, be approved: 
 
The Procurement and Contract Standing Orders be amended so that approval to 

Page 2



  
accept tenders is as follows: 
 

£0 – 9,999 Approved Officer 
£10,000 - £49,999 Approved Officer with informal written 

acceptance from relevant Cabinet 
Member and Cabinet member for Co-
ordination & Central Services 

£50,000 – 249,999 Formal decision by the relevant 
Cabinet Member and Cabinet Member 
for Co-ordination & Central Services or 
the Leader of the Council 

£250,000 or greater Formal decision by the Cabinet 
 
This change will be amended in the relevant sections of the Procurement and 
Contract Standing Orders and other related sections of the Council's 
Constitution. 

 
(v) the Head of Democratic Services and Borough Solicitor, in consultation 

with the Leader of the Council: 
a. be authorised to make appropriate amendments to the Council 

Constitution to reflect the implementation of The Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
England Regulations 2012; and 

b. brief Members and officers on the new procedures to be put in place. 
 

24. AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Councillor Bianco moved the recommendation.  This was seconded by Councillor 
Puddifoot and, following debate (Councillor Curling), it was: 
 
RESOLVED:  That the annual report be noted. 
 

25. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 7.1 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR O’CONNOR TO THE CABINET 
MEMBER FOR IMPROVEMENT, PARTNERSHIPS & COMMUNITY SAFETY – 
COUNCILLOR D MILLS 
 
“I understand that the Crossrail design for Hayes & Harlington Station is at a critical 
point and that over the next few months decisions will be made by Crossrail as to the 
exact design for the future Hayes & Harlington Station. Given the significance of the 
design work and the impact it will have on Hayes Town Centre and adjoining 
redevelopments under construction by third parties, would the Cabinet Member inform 
me how this very important matter is being dealt with by the Council?” 
 
Councillor D Mills responded that the Council recognised the importance of Hayes & 
Harlington Station to the future development of the area.  It was clear that the Station 
needed to be a quality landmark and major gateway to Hayes and that this work was 
an ideal opportunity to restore pride in the area whilst also bringing disused buildings 
back into use.  The Council was already in discussions with developers and that it 
was anticipated that 50% more jobs would be created than would otherwise have 
been possible.   
 
Councillor Mills stated that the Council’s previous GLA Member had made significant 

Page 3



  
representations on behalf of Hayes and had secured a visit from the Mayor of London 
in April 2012.  Following this visit, Network Rail had commissioned consultants to 
speak to the Council with regard to the inclusion of the Station in the Crossrail plans.  
Councillor Mills noted that there had not been any support forthcoming from 
Hillingdon’s current GLA representative on this matter since the May elections.   
 
Councillor O’Connor, by way of a supplementary question, asked whether the Council 
had considered any further improvements to Hayes Town Centre. 
 
Councillor Mills advised that the Council had submitted a bid to TfL in relation to 
public realm improvements for Hayes.  TfL had encouraged the Council (as well as 
other authorities) to submit a bid for funding following discussions about the 
authority’s vision for Hayes.  A successful bid would mean that, by the end of 2012, 
the Council could have several million pounds to use on improvements in Hayes, on 
top of the funding that had already been secured from the Mayor of London in 
February 2012.  Councillor Mills believed that this work demonstrated that Hayes was 
seen by the Council, the Mayor of London and TfL as being a major regeneration 
project.  
 
7.2 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR GARDNER TO THE CABINET 
MEMBER FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION & RECYCLING – COUNCILLOR 
BURROWS 
 
“Considering 
 
1.  that the strategy in the Hillingdon Local Plan reflects the Council’s intention that 
the higher density residential development will continue to take place in the south of 
the Borough; and 
2.  that the recent inspector’s report mentions an annual need to provide well over 
2000 affordable homes in the Borough, 
 
Can the Cabinet Member please tell the Council how many of these affordable homes 
are expected to be built north of the A40 and how many to the south?” 
 
Councillor Burrows responded that the recent Inspector’s report not only noted the 
Borough-wide Housing Market Assessment in 2009, which identified a need to 
provide 2,063 affordable homes per annum, but also went on to state: “This is of 
course well above the overall housing target but not an unusual situation when there 
is such a deficiency in affordable housing supply in London as well as nationally”. 
 
The London Plan had set a target of 425 new affordable homes being provided 
annually in Hillingdon.  The number of those homes that would be built would depend 
on the availability of suitable sites and whether it was economically viable for private 
developers to provide affordable housing as part of their schemes. 
 
The Hillingdon Local Plan set a target that 35% of all new homes should be provided 
as affordable housing.  This approach was supported by the Inspector as it was based 
on detailed background research carried out for the Plan and complied with policy on 
affordable housing provision across London as a whole, something within which the 
Council had to comply. 
 
Between 2011 and 2021, the Hillingdon Local Plan identified a total of 3,097 new 
homes which could be delivered from large sites (i.e., those over 0.25 hectares in 
size).  Of this total, 863 homes would be built to the north of the A40 and 2,234 homes 

Page 4



  
to the south.  The resulting numbers of affordable homes which were expected to be 
built was 305 to the north of the A40 and 782 to the south – this was as a result of the 
location of suitable sites for development.    
 
Councillor Gardner, by way of a supplementary question, asked how the Council 
would ensure that the infrastructure would be in place to support the needs of these 
additional residents (e.g., in relation to health, education, leisure). 
 
Councillor Burrows assured Councillor Gardner that the Council had worked hard to 
ensure that there were adequate school places throughout the Borough for every child 
and that work would continue to ensure that the services available to new residents 
were in place.  He stated that the current administration had always, and would 
continue to, put its residents first. 
 
7.3 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR GHEI TO THE CABINET 
MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES – COUNCILLOR 
SIMMONDS 
 
“Given the recent news that the Secretary of State for Education, Michael Gove, has 
approved every application for the disposal of playing fields that has come before him, 
in spite of the Coalition agreement stating that this government will encourage 
competitive sport by protecting and seeking new school playing fields, will the Cabinet 
Member take this opportunity to assure Hillingdon’s residents that he will inspire the 
next generation by not seeking, and indeed actively campaign against, the disposal, 
development or change of use of the Borough’s school and municipal playing fields?” 
 
Councillor Simmonds confirmed that, generally speaking, he could make this 
assurance.  He went on to advise that all of the schools that were being extended in 
the Borough would have sufficient open space. 
 
There was no supplementary question. 
 
7.4 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR DHILLON TO THE CABINET 
MEMBER FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION & RECYCLING – COUNCILLOR 
BURROWS 
 
“Would you please enlighten us as to how the funds made available to Hillingdon by 
the government to tackle the ”Beds in Sheds” issue will be allocated?” 
 
Councillor Burrows responded that the Council was pleased to have received 
Government support for tackling the issue of beds in sheds.  Whilst the problem in 
Hillingdon was not the same as Slough or Hounslow, it was becoming an issue in 
some parts of the Borough.  Approximately 15% of the Planning Enforcement Team’s 
workload involved dealing with the unauthorised conversion of outbuildings into 
separate units of residential accommodation.  The Council was keen to ensure that 
this did not develop into a larger problem in the future. 
 
The Council’s strategy was therefore to focus on changing public behaviour to prevent 
unauthorised beds in sheds, with a hard hitting enforcement approach.  This meant 
serving notices, pursuing prosecutions and publicising such actions to prevent new 
cases arising.  It was acknowledged that joint prosecutions involving both breaches of 
Planning legislation and Housing in Multiple Occupation legislation were more 
successful and effective, yielding a higher fine and providing a stronger deterrent.   
 

Page 5



  
Continuing the administration’s innovative and forward thinking approach to problem 
solving, a dedicated “beds in sheds” prosecutions lawyer would be appointed with 
both planning and housing expertise, to coordinate robust enforcement processes and 
to fast track individual cases from investigation all the way through to prosecution.    
The focus would be on preventative measures that persuaded people not to consider 
building or occupying outbuildings for residential accommodation by publicising 
successful prosecutions and also other associated matters such as fire risks, help for 
those made homeless, removing benefits and pursuing proceeds of crime action 
(POCA). 
 
The issue of beds in sheds was complex and involved a wide range of Council teams 
including legal, planning, planning enforcement, housing, private sector housing and 
corporate communications.  The Council had therefore also set up a dedicated and 
cross-cutting team of existing staff to better utilise resources to tackle the issues in a 
comprehensive way and liaise directly with the new prosecution lawyer.   
 
The Council’s approach had received praise from the DCLG and Councillor Burrows 
believed that the Council was using the additional funds in the most effective way in 
order to get the best results for its residents.  He encouraged all Members who 
wanted further information to attend the Beds in Sheds seminar which formed part of 
the Member Development Day on 30 October 2012.   
 
Councillor Dhillon, by way of a supplementary question, stated that enforcement was 
a costly process and asked whether the Council would be submitting a bid for 
additional funding to continue the work once the current funding had ended.   
 
Councillor Burrows advised that the current funding had been provided for a one year 
period and that officers would be applying for funding in subsequent years to continue 
the good work.  This would enable the Council to continue to prosecute individuals 
and take tough action against anyone who flouted the regulations.   
 
7.5 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR SANSARPURI TO THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR CULTURE, SPORT & LEISURE – COUNCILLOR 
HIGGINS 
 
“This year we are seeing the nation being brought together through the joys of young 
people taking part in competitive sport. However, the focus is now turning to the 
legacy of the Olympics and Paralympics. The Tory led coalition government has 
scrapped the 2 hours per week of compulsory sport and P.E that the last Labour 
Government introduced. In light of our recent sporting success, will the Cabinet 
Member ask the Government to reintroduce compulsory sport and P.E to support and 
inspire the next generation of Hillingdon residents to become the next recipients of 
Olympic medals?” 
 
Councillor Higgins responded that the Conservative led Government was giving 
control of school curriculum back to the parents and governors who were best placed 
to make decisions in relation to the amount of time that should be devoted to sport in 
their schools.  He went on to highlight that schools such as Harefield Academy 
specialised in sport and that they would now be able to use the Olympics to inspire a 
generation and focus on competitive sports rather than promoting a culture of prizes 
for everyone. 
 
Councillor Higgins stated that young people in the Borough had access to some of the 
best sporting facilities in London.  He advised that the recent medal achievements of 

Page 6



  
local Paralympians, Andy Lapthorne and Natasha Baker, was testament to the good 
work that was already being undertaken in the Borough.  Both of these athletes had 
been awarded bursaries by the Council and had expressed their thanks for this 
support.    
 
There was no supplementary question. 
 

26. MOTIONS  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

 8.1 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR CURLING 
 
Councillor Curling moved the following motion: 
 
“This Council notes and highlights the following statements from the Inspector’s report 
on the core strategy of the Hillingdon Local Plan: 
 
“A particular challenge will be to ensure that planned-for growth does not take place at 
the expense of valued open space and locally distinctive townscape elements. I have 
been made aware of the strength of local feeling in this respect. 
 
There is concern locally, expressed at the Hearings, that the Green Belt might be 
eroded by the Council’s search for new school sites. Policy EM2 does state that it will 
carry out the search for school sites in a sequential way, exhausting all other options 
before Green Belt land is considered.  
 
Provided the Council does this, and applies the Policy in accordance with “the very 
special circumstances” test I am satisfied that the Policy is sound. Clearly it will be a 
matter for the Council and local residents to be vigilant in ensuring that the Policy is 
strictly and consistently applied”. 
 
This Council believes that the Cabinet has 
• failed to carry out a proper search for alternative school sites before opting to build 

on the much valued Lake Farm Country Park; 
• failed to demonstrate any “very special circumstances” that would justify building 

on Green Belt land; and 
• failed to display any semblance of transparency or open government in the 

conduct of this exercise. 
 
It therefore requests the Cabinet to go back to the drawing board and to conduct a 
thorough review of all possible options for a new primary school in Hayes and to do 
this with full and meaningful public consultation.” 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Gardner.  Following debate (Councillors 
Allam, Ghei, Major, Puddifoot, Sansarpuri and Simmonds), Councillor Puddifoot 
moved, and Councillor Simmonds seconded, the following amendment: 
 
After the extract from the Inspectors’ report, add: 

 
“This Council further notes and highlights that the Council evaluated a total of 
17 sites in relation to Primary School provision in the Hayes area.  These were 
evaluated against a number of criteria, including location (i.e., being within the 
school catchment), size (must be large enough to accommodate a 3FE school, 
taking into account DFES standards), accessibility, planning policy 
designations, and availability to the Council.  As a result of this work, the Lake 

Page 7



  
Farm site came out as the most suited for the proposed school. 
 
With regards to any ‘very special circumstances’, these will be considered in 
the determination of the planning application.  It should be pointed out that any 
planning application for such development on green belt land would have to be 
referred to the Mayor of London and the Secretary of State, who will examine 
the case for very special circumstances.  This justification would include the 
sequential test that demonstrates that there are no alternative sites available.” 

 
Delete the words “This Council believes the Cabinet has” and replace with “The 
Hillingdon Council Labour Party Group believes that the Cabinet has”. 
 
Delete the last paragraph and replace with: 
 

“Council therefore requests that the Hillingdon Council Labour Group provide 
the Cabinet with a list of what they consider to be viable and practical 
alternatives in terms of cost and the timetable for provision of a new Primary 
School in the relevant area of Hayes for inclusion on the agenda for the 
Cabinet Meeting on 27 September 2012. 
 
For the sake of transparency and open governance the Cabinet will ensure that 
The Labour Group proposals and the Cabinet response is circulated in the 
local area to aid meaningful Public Consultation”. 

 
Following debate (Councillors Allam, Allen, Curling, Dhillon, Harmsworth, Major, D 
Mills and Nelson) the amendment was put to a vote and carried.  The substantive 
motion was then put to the vote and carried.   
 
RESOLVED:  That this Council notes and highlights the following statements 
from the Inspector’s report on the core strategy of the Hillingdon Local Plan: 
 
“A particular challenge will be to ensure that planned-for growth does not take 
place at the expense of valued open space and locally distinctive townscape 
elements. I have been made aware of the strength of local feeling in this 
respect. 
 
There is concern locally, expressed at the Hearings, that the Green Belt might 
be eroded by the Council’s search for new school sites. Policy EM2 does state 
that it will carry out the search for school sites in a sequential way, exhausting 
all other options before Green Belt land is considered. Provided the Council 
does this, and applies the Policy in accordance with “the very special 
circumstances” test I am satisfied that the Policy is sound. Clearly it will be a 
matter for the Council and local residents to be vigilant in ensuring that the 
Policy is strictly and consistently applied”. 
 
This Council further notes and highlights that the Council evaluated a total of 
17 sites. These were evaluated against a number of criteria, including location 
(i.e. being within the school catchment), size (must be large enough to 
accommodate a 3FE school, taking into account DFES standards), accessibility, 
planning policy designations, and availability to the Council.  As a result of this 
work, the Lake Farm site came out as the most suited for the proposed school. 
 
With regards to any ‘very special circumstances’, these will be considered in 
the determination of the planning application.  It should be pointed out that any 

Page 8



  
planning application for such development on green belt land would have to be 
referred to the Mayor of London and the Secretary of State, who will examine 
the case for very special circumstances. This justification would include the 
sequential test that demonstrates that there are no alternative sites available. 
 
The Hillingdon Council Labour Party Group believes that the Cabinet has: 

• failed to carry out a proper search for alternative school sites before 
opting to build on the much valued Lake Farm Country Park; 

• failed to demonstrate any “very special circumstances” that would justify 
building on Green Belt land; and 

• failed to display any semblance of transparency or open government in 
the conduct of this exercise. 

 
Council therefore requests that the Hillingdon Council Labour Group provide 
the Cabinet with a list of what they consider to be viable and practical 
alternatives in terms of cost and the timetable for provision of a new Primary 
School in the relevant area of Hayes for inclusion on the agenda for the Cabinet 
Meeting on 27 September 2012. 
 
For the sake of transparency and open governance, the Cabinet will ensure that 
The Labour Group proposals and the Cabinet response is circulated in the local 
area to aid meaningful Public Consultation. 
 
8.2 MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR ALLEN 
 
Councillor Allen moved the following motion: 
 
“This Council notes: 
 
1. The findings of the recent ‘Dispatches’ documentary into fixed odds betting 

terminals. 
2. The outcome of the vote at July 5 Council Meeting where the Council declined to 

support a motion highlighting the issue of the clustering of betting shops in 
Hillingdon and the need to reform the current planning laws surrounding betting 
shops. 

 
This Council resolves to: 
 
1. Enforce and sustain the current limit of no more than 4 Fixed Place Betting 

Terminals per betting shop. 
2. To write to John Whittingdale MP, Chair of the Culture, Media and Sport 

Committee requesting he withdraw his recommendation to increase the limit on 
Fixed Place Betting Terminals in Betting Shops. 

3.  To write to Secretary of State Jeremy Hunt to ask the Government to bring forward 
legislation that will further regulate the use and numbers of Fixed Place Betting 
Terminals on our High Streets and to commission independent research into their 
affect on society. 

4. Consider the true economic impact of betting shops and the services they offer 
on the local area and if necessary commission research to examine the effect 
they have on local communities.” 

 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Sansarpuri.  Following debate (Councillor 
Puddifoot) the motion was put to the vote and lost. 
 

Page 9



  
  

The meeting, which commenced at 7.30 pm, closed at 8.49 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Lloyd White, Head of Democratic Services on 01895 
556743.  Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and 
Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 10



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

 
5.1 QUESTION FROM MR IAN BROOKS OF KENT GARDENS, EASTCOTE TO THE 

CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION & RECYCLING – 
COUNCILLOR BURROWS 

 
There is legislation in place to restrict the movement of lorries during the night to 
reduce noise pollution in London. Whilst 28 out of 32 London boroughs subscribe to 
the London Lorry Control Scheme the London Borough of Hillingdon does not. What 
alternative enforcement regime is the London Borough of Hillingdon proposing to 
implement in order to secure compliance with the London night time lorry ban? 
 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

 

Page 12



Council – 08 November 2012 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
 
Reporting Officer: Head of Democratic Services 
 
6.1 APPOINTMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

i) In accordance with Part 4 (F) of the Constitution, the Appointments Committee 
are required to interview and recommend to Full Council an appointment of the 
Chief Executive. 

 
ii) Accordingly, the Appointments Committee met on 18 October 2012 to interview 

applicants for the post of Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration and Council is asked to consider the unanimous 
recommendation of the Committee that Fran Beasley, the current Deputy Chief 
Executive, be appointed Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration of the London Borough of Hillingdon w.e.f 1 December 2012. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That the recommendation of the Appointments 
Committee be approved. 

 
 
6.2 CHANGES TO COUNCIL MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE AND SCHEME OF 

DELEGATION TO OFFICERS 
 

i) Commensurate with the appointment of the Chief Executive, the Leader of the 
Council, under delegated authority contained in Part 2, 7.08(e) of the 
Constitution has implemented changes to the senior management structure of 
the Council as detailed below. 

 
ii) As a result of these changes the Scheme of Delegation to Officers contained in 

Part 3 of the Constitution has been amended and is attached as Appendix A 
(version with changes highlighted) and Appendix B (fully amended version) for 
Council approval. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That: 
 
a) Part 3 of the Constitution - Scheme of Delegation to Officers, as attached 

at Appendix B, amended to reflect the changes below, be approved and 
 

b) the Head of Democratic Services be authorised to make further minor 
textual changes to the remainder of the Constitution where required to 
reflect the revised structure / job titles etc. 

 
Changes to Council Management Structure: 
 
• The title of the Chief Executive to become Chief Executive and Corporate 

Director of Administration 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



Council – 08 November 2012 

• The title of the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of PEECS to become 
Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Resident Services. The 
responsibilities of the post amended to include: 
Ø All aspects of Housing including maintenance, management & housing 

needs previously delegated to the Corporate Director Social Care Health & 
Housing. 

Ø Enforcement activities and anti fraud and anti corruption measures across 
the whole Council, previously delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive & 
Corporate Director of Central Services. 

 
• The title of the Corporate Director Social Care, Health and Housing to become 

Corporate Director of Social Care and Health 
 

• w.e.f 1 December 2012 a new position to be created of Corporate Director of 
Finance. The principal responsibilities of the post will be *: 
Ø Corporate Finance: Responsibility for general grants, accounting systems, 

corporate accounts, external audit liaison and insurance. 
Ø Service Finance: Responsibility for the medium term financial forecast, 

budget preparation and monitoring, financial appraisals of all service areas 
and VAT. 

Ø Pensions & Payroll: Responsibility for all aspects of pension and payroll 
provision. 

Ø Revenue Services: Responsibility for income collection arrangements 
including rents, council tax, business rates, service charges, mortgages, 
education recoupment and social care charges. 

Ø Benefits Service: Responsibility for the calculation and payment of all 
benefits including council tax, housing , community care grants, other 
general grants and the universal credit. 

Ø Internal Audit: Responsibility for internal audit. 
Ø Procurement & Commissioning: Responsibility for the procurement and 

commissioning of contracts for the delivery and supply of all services to the 
Council and its residents, including social care, housing and education. 

Ø Economic Development: Responsibility, in conjunction with the Head of 
Policy, Performance & Partnerships, for local business support and 
regeneration. 

* Until the new post is filled the above delegations will be held by the Deputy 
Director of Finance who currently already covers a number of these delegations. 

 
 
6.3 PART 2, ARTICLE 7 OF THE CONSTITUTION – THE CABINET 
 

Article 7 of the Constitution sets out the powers of the Leader of the Council to 
appoint Members to serve on the Cabinet and to determine their portfolios. 
Accordingly, the Leader of the Council has notified the Head of Democratic Services 
of the following changes to be made to the current Cabinet Portfolios (with 
immediate effect unless shown otherwise) which are detailed for Members 
information only: 
 
RECOMMENDATION: That the following changes to Cabinet Portfolios be 
noted: 

Page 14



Council – 08 November 2012 

 
General Cabinet Member delegations - to include a requirement within ‘Service 
Planning and Delivery’ to ensure services contribute to the Public Health priorities of 
the Council in accordance with the Public Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 
Portfolio: 
• Leader of the Council, Councillor Puddifoot – to include: 

Ø signing off all approved expenditure on external support, agency and 
consultancy advice for the Business Improvement Delivery programme 
(previously in Improvement, Partnerships and Community Safety) 

Ø responsibility for ‘Enforcement’ functions across the authority within the sub-
heading ‘Finance, Property, Enforcement and Audit’. 

Ø to act as Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
Ø to approve, on the recommendation of the Borough Solicitor, the appointment 

of Counsel (previously in Co-ordination and Central Services) 
 

Portfolio: 
• Deputy Leader of the Council Cabinet Member for Education and Children’s 

Services, Councillor Simmonds – no change 
 
Portfolio: 
• Cabinet Member for Social Services, Health and Housing, Councillor 

Corthorne– to include: 
Ø responsibility for the Public Health priorities of the Council 

 
 Delete responsibility for: 

Ø overseeing and reporting to the Cabinet on the Council’s responsibilities and 
initiatives in respect of the housing benefit scheme 

Ø Commissioning of services 
 

Portfolio: 
• Cabinet Member for Finance, Property and Business Services, Councillor 

Bianco – to include: 
Ø to oversee and report to the Cabinet on the Council’s responsibilities and 

initiatives in respect of 
o the housing benefit scheme (previously in Social Services Health and 

Housing) 
o Information Governance 

 
Portfolio: 
• Cabinet Member for Co-ordination and Central Services, Councillor Seaman-

Digby – to include: 
Ø overseeing and reporting to the Cabinet on the Council’s responsibilities and 

initiatives in respect of Procurement, Policy and Commissioning of services 
(previously Commissioning included in Social Services Health and Housing) 

  
 Delete responsibility for: 

Ø approval, on the recommendation of the Borough Solicitor, the appointment of 
Counsel. 

Page 15



Council – 08 November 2012 

Ø under the direction of the Leader of the Council, to assist in the delivery of the 
Council Plan and related initiatives and projects, where appropriate in 
consultation with other portfolio holders. 

Ø to be responsible for other portfolio responsibilities or specific delegations, 
which are agreed in advance by the Leader of the Council under existing 
delegations. 

 
Portfolio: 
• Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling, Councillor 

Burrows – no change 
 

Portfolio: With effect from 1 December 2012: 
• Cabinet Member for Improvement, Partnerships and Community Safety – to be 

renamed Community, Commerce and Regeneration, Councillor D.Mills – to 
include: 
Ø to oversee and report to the Cabinet on the Council’s responsibilities and 

initiatives in respect of:- 
o economic regeneration 
o libraries 
o leisure services 
o cultural activities 
o sports strategy 
o development of the arts 

Ø to be responsible for the provision and direction of Town Twinning 
 
Delete responsibility for: 
Ø signing off all approved expenditure on external support, agency and 

consultancy advice for the Business Improvement Delivery programme 
 
Portfolio: 
• Culture, Sport and Leisure – portfolio to be deleted w.e.f 1 December 2012. 

 
 
6.4 MEMBERSHIP OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the changes to the membership of Committees as 
shown below be approved: 
 
Upon the nomination of the Conservative Group and w.e.f 1 December 2012,  
 
• Executive Scrutiny Committee – Councillor Higgins to replace Councillor 

Lavery. 
 
 

Page 16



Council – 08 November 2012 

6.5  URGENT IMPLEMENTATION OF DECISIONS 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Urgency decisions detailed below be noted. 
 
Information 
 
1.  The Constitution allows a Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision to be 

implemented under special urgency rules and also, when urgent, before the 
expiry of the 5 day call-in provided there is agreement from the Chairman of the 
Executive Scrutiny Committee to waive this. All such decisions are to be reported 
for information only to the next full Council meeting. 

 
2. Recently the following decisions have been made using the urgency procedures: 

 
  Cabinet Member decisions under special urgency procedures: 
 

• A joint decision by the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Property and Business Services on 11 September 2012 to release 
capital funds for Private Sector Renewal Grants and Disabled Facilities 
Grants.  

• A joint decision by the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Property and Business Services on 21 September 2012 to release 
capital funds for the Highways Structural and Localities Programme 2012/13 
Phase 2 and Hillingdon Housing Service’s HRA Works to Stock programme 
2012/13.  

• A joint decision by the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Property and Business Services on 24 October 2012 to release 
capital funds for the Environmental Asset Budget Ruislip Lido Enhancement 
Phase 2. 

 
Cabinet decision under urgency procedures: 
 
• A Cabinet decision on 27 September 2012 to release of capital funds for the 

school expansion programme. 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



PART 3 – SCHEME OF 
DELEGATION TO OFFICERS 
FUNCTIONS DELEGATED TO OFFICERS

Preamble

The full Council or the Cabinet have delegated the following functions to 
officers of the Council. 

All delegated powers are exercised in accordance with Council policies, within 
any financial limits imposed and within any guidelines prescribed by the 
Cabinet or appropriate Committee. 

Any action under these delegations shall strictly be in accordance with: 

(a) policies approved by the Council, the Leader, Cabinet, a Cabinet 
Member or a Council committee 

(b) the approved budget and approved management and business plans 
(c) the Council’s Financial Regulations, Standing Orders and Contract 

Rules. 

When exercising delegated powers on key matters, officers should maintain a 
close liaison with the relevant Cabinet Member and refer any proposed action 
to the Leader, Cabinet Member, or the Cabinet if so required by the Leader or 
the relevant Cabinet Member. 

Delegations to the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration 

The Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration is the officer 
responsible and accountable for: 

• Working closely with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet to agree 
strategy and targets for the Council 

• Providing leadership and direction in the achievement of the Council’s 
strategic objectives 

• Managing highest level external relationships 
• Supporting other Corporate Directors to address specific priority issues  

Specific delegations are:

1. To be the council’s Head of Paid Service for the purposes of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. 

Deleted: o

Deleted: c

Page 19



2. To authorise generally or on any particular occasion an officer to 
exercise the delegated powers of any other officer.

3. To give directions that a delegated power shall or shall not be 
exercised in a particular way and on the application of delegated 
powers in general, except any power vested in the Corporate Director 
of Social Care and Health and the education functions which are the 
responsibility of the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Residents Services.   

4. To agree the terms and conditions of employment of all staff (other 
than the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration) and 
the creation, deletion or amendment of all the Council’s HR policies 
and procedures except that any proposals for enhanced retirement 
packages shall be referred to the Pensions Committee for decision. 

5. To suspend the statutory s151 Officer and Monitoring Officer pending 
an immediate summoning of the Investigations and Disciplinary 
Committee. 

6. In respect of a Council capital project or revenue service, where an 
emergency or exceptionally urgent situation arises in relation to a 
commercial contract where: 

a) The Leader and Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration agree the urgency; 

b) There is no Cabinet meeting imminent; 
c) Any delay would seriously jeopardise the Council’s finances or its 

ability to deliver services and; 
d) A previous executive decision has been made or proposed in 

respect of the capital project or service provision concerned, 

authority is granted to the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration, subject to the written agreement of the Leader of the 
Council, to incur expenditure and make any new and necessary 
contractual decisions in order to secure the successful delivery of the 
project or service. 

In such instances, the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing 
Orders can be waived. Any decisions taken must be reported to a 
subsequent Cabinet meeting for formal ratification.

7. To be responsible and accountable for the following services:
Formatted: Indent: Left:  0
cm

Deleted: ,

Deleted: & Housing 

Deleted: Deputy Director of 
Education.   

Deleted: ,

Deleted: and the 

Deleted: personnel 

Page 20



• Democratic Services 
• Communications
• Policy,  Performance and Partnerships 
• Human Resources 
• Legal Services 

8. The Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration has, in 
accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-
delegated the day to day responsibility for managing the services set 
out above to  those officers who report directly to her. 

The delegations to the Borough Solicitor and the Head of Democratic 
Services are detailed in this Part of the Constitution.  They are also set out in 
the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration’s Internal 
Scheme of Delegations where the sub-delegations to her other Heads of 
Service can also be found. 

9. In conjunction with the Leader, to oversee the Hillingdon Improvement 
Programme and authorise expenditure on it. 

Delegations to the Deputy Chief Executive and the Corporate 
Director of  Residents Services

The Deputy Chief Executive and the Corporate Director of Residents Services
is the officer responsible and accountable for: 

• Transportation and Planning Policy 
• Public Safety 
• Adult Education 
• Libraries 
• Culture, Sport, Leisure 
• Corporate Property and Construction 
• Environment 
• Highways & Green Spaces 
• Consumer Protection 
• ICT and  Business Services 
• Education 
• Youth Services 
• Planning,  
• Trading Standards 
• Environmental Protection 
• Housing [which includes maintenance, management and housing 

needs]
• Anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures and enforcement in all areas 

across the whole Council

Formatted: Indent: First line: 
0 cm, Tabs:  1.9 cm, Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0
cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm, Tabs: 
1.27 cm, Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0
cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm, Tabs: 
1.27 cm, Left

Formatted: Underline, Font
color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Deleted: Delegations to the 
Deputy Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Central 
Services¶
¶
The Deputy Chief Executive 
and Corporate Director of 
Central Services is the officer 
responsible and accountable 
for:¶

Deleted: <#>Finance¶
<#>Procurement¶
<#>Audit¶

Deleted: &

Deleted: Deputy 

Deleted: her Heads of Service 

Deleted: the Deputy Director 
of Finance, 

Deleted: Deputy 

Deleted: ’s

Deleted: The Deputy Chief 
Executive, in 

Deleted: will 

Deleted: The Deputy Chief 
Executive is the second most 
senior officer within the 
Council’s Management 
hierarchy and has the 
delegated authority to deputise 
for the Council’s Chief 
Executive.¶

Deleted: Planning, 
Environment, Education & 
Community Services

Deleted: Planning, 
Environment, Education & 
Community 

Deleted: incl. enforcement

Page 21



The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services will 
specifically assist the Leader and the Chief Executive in relation to resident 
facing corporate working across the Council. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services, in 
conjunction with the Leader, will oversee the Business Improvement Delivery 
Programme and authorise expenditure on it. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services, in 
conjunction with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property and Business Services will oversee the development, construction 
and use of land and property assets across all Council Directorates, including 
the Housing Development Programme and be responsible for all such 
reporting to Members. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services
has the delegated authority to deputise for the Council’s Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Administration in her absence. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services 
has, in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-
delegated the day to day responsibility for managing the services set out 
above to  those officers who report directly to her.  The sub-delegations are 
set out in full in the Deputy Chief Executive’s Internal Scheme of Delegations. 

Specific Delegations, which may be sub-delegated, include:

1. To take all procedural steps necessary prior to deciding whether 
to give a direction to admit a child in the borough to a specified 
voluntary aided or foundation school in accordance with section 
97 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

2. To issue a direction to admit a child in the borough to a specified 
voluntary aided or foundation school in accordance with section 
96 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

3. To request an Academy to admit a child in the Borough to it. 

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Social Care and 
Health 

The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is the officer responsible 
and accountable for: 

• Adult Services 
• Health 
• Access and Assessment 
• Personalised Services 

Deleted: is the third most 
senior officer within the 
Council’s Management 
hierarchy and 

Deleted: his 

Deleted:  and the absence of 
the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Central 
Services

Deleted: her Heads of Service 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: & Housing 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: & Housing 

Deleted: <#>Housing [which 
includes maintenance, 
management and housing 
needs]¶

Page 22



• Improvement in social care
• Children and Families 

The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is to be responsible for all 
social services functions by being designated both the statutory Director of 
Adult Social Services and the statutory Director of Children’s Services. 

Specifically, the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is: 

1. To be responsible for the delivery of local authority social services 
functions listed in Schedule 1 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970 (as amended). 

2. To have overall responsibility for those functions which relate to 
children which are set out in: 

 a) The Children Act 2004 and in particular Section 18; 

 b) Such other functions conferred on or exercisable by the Council 
as may be prescribed by the Secretary of State by regulation or which 
the Council may consider appropriate. 

The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health has, in accordance 
with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-delegated the 
day to day responsibility for managing the services set out above to 
those officers who report directly to her.  The sub-delegations are set 
out in full in the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health’s Internal 
Scheme of Delegations. 

General Delegations to the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief 
Executive and the Corporate Directors of Social Care
andHealth and Finance

These delegations are to the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive and 
the Corporate Directors of Social Care and Health and Finance who may 
discharge the function through one of his/her staff.  

1. To take any steps necessary for the day to day management and 
administration of any matters within the designated area of 
responsibility and to take overall responsibility for the performance of 
their service area. 

2. To take all such action as ordinarily falls within the scope of 
professional responsibility and deal with all other matters delegated or 
to be delegated by Council, Cabinet, Cabinet Member or the Chief 
Executive and Corporate Director of Administration. 

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Deleted: <#>Commissioning 
and Improvement [social care 
and housing]

Deleted: <#>¶

Deleted: her Heads of Service

Deleted: ’s

Deleted: s

Deleted: , 

Deleted: and Housing 

Deleted: s

Deleted: , 

Deleted: and Housing 

Page 23



3. To manage any budget for which the Deputy Chief 
Executive/Corporate  Directors have lead responsibility within the 
approved cash limit, provided that no action is taken which would result 
in growth in future years or which would affect a budget which is not 
under the chief officer’s direct control.  This includes authorising 
virements in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules which can be found in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

4. To exercise the council’s functions in obtaining registrations, licences, 
certificates or other similar documents required by the council, its 
officers or in respect of its premises from any authority or body not 
being the council. 

5. To exercise the council’s right of objection against any application 
made by third parties for registration, certificates, licences, orders and 
other similar matters. 

6. To register, issue or grant licences (not being occupational licences), 
notices, certificates, orders or similar documents which the council are 
authorised or required to register, issue, grant, give or make by or 
under any enactment. 

7. To exercise discretion in writing off or remitting in whole or in part debts 
of up to £5,000 due to the council, but only after all reasonable steps to 
recover them have been taken.  

8. Within their designated area of responsibility and subject to 1) any 
corporate property standards, 2) Procurement and Contract Standing 
Orders and 3) the agreement of the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Residents Services to acquire or grant 
easements and leases for a term not exceeding seven years less 2 
days and to acquire or dispose of any other interests in land the value 
of which does not exceed £10,000.  

9. Subject to compliance with any corporate property standards and the 
Procurement and Contract Standing Orders, to take any steps for the 
proper and effective management of such property falling within their 
designated area of responsibility, subject to the agreement of the 
Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services. 

10. In accordance with the Council’s Personnel Procedures, but subject to 
the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, to appoint to, dismiss from 
and amend posts within the chief officer’s area of responsibility. 

11. In accordance with the Council’s HR Procedures to suspend, other 
than the three Statutory Officers, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief 
Officers within their area of responsibility. 

12. To agree compensation payments not exceeding £1000 under the 
Council’s Complaints Procedure. 

Deleted: s

Deleted: has 

Deleted: Planning, 
Environment, Education and 
Community Services, 

Deleted: Planning, 
Environment, Education and 
Community

Deleted: Personnel 

Page 24



13. To make decisions in respect of quotations, tenders, consultants, 
agency & temporary workers and contracts in accordance with the 
Procurement and Contract Standing Orders – Schedule H. 

14. To exercise all of the powers of Approved Officers for the purposes of 
the Procurement and Contract Standing Orders.. 

15. To enter into agreements, on behalf of the Council incurring match 
funding or a revenue commitment from the Council, subject to the 
Cabinet having previously agreed the proposal including the final level 
of Council commitment. 

16. In conjunction with the Leader and relevant Cabinet Member, to sign-
offexpenditure for approved Initiatives. 

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Finance

1. To act as and exercise the functions of the “chief finance officer” 
meaning the officer designated under section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  These functions include: 

 (a)  Responsibility for general grants, accounting systems, corporate 
accounts, external audit liaison and insurance.

 (b) Responsibility for the medium term financial forecast, budget 
preparation and monitoring, financial appraisals of all service areas and 
VAT. 

 (c) Responsibility for income collecting arrangements including 
rents, council tax, business rates, service charges, mortgages, 
education recoupment and social care charges. 

2. To exercise the Council’s functions regarding the demanding of 
National Non-Domestic Rate and the Council Tax and the collection 
and recovery of all sums owing in respect thereof and regarding all 
matters involving valuation for rating purposes, and for these purposes 
to authorise officers to represent the Council in magistrates’ courts, the 
Local Valuation Court or the Valuation and Community Charge Council 
Tax, Tribunals. 

3. To implement the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy which has 
adopted CIPFA’s “Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local 
Authorities” and to control all money in the hands of the Council in 
accordance with this CIPFA code by taking all executive decisions on 
borrowing, investment or financing including, without limitation, the 
power: -  

(i) to raise money pursuant to any authority to borrow. 

Deleted:  and the Code of 
Practice

Deleted: 

Deleted: Deputy 

Deleted: c

Deleted: c

Deleted: c

Page 25



(ii) to make temporary investments of monies by way of loan 
provided proper security is deposited with the Council’s bankers. 

(iii) to make advances from the Consolidated Loans Fund or other 
funds held by the Council. 

(iv) to buy or sell investments of any kind. 

4. To have regard to CIPFA’s “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities” when considering all matters relating to capital 
finance, as defined by Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.  This 
involves establishing procedures to monitor performance against all 
forward looking prudential indicators and ensuring that the following 
matters are taken into account when prudential indicators are set or 
revised: - 

i.Affordability; 
ii.Prudence and sustainability; 
iii. Value for money; 
iv.Stewardship of assets; 
v.Service objectives; and 
vi.Practicality. 

5. To administer and manage the council’s pension fund in accordance 
with the regulations and with policy set by the pensions committee. 

6 To administer any funds which are approved by the council and which 
are pursuant to the effective management of the council’s finances. 

7. To review and amend Financial Regulations. 

8. To set the rate of interest for mortgages and loans. 

9. To be responsible for all aspects of payroll provision.

10. To be responsible for the calculation and payment of all benefits, 
including council tax, housing, community care grants, other general 
grants and the universal credit. 

11. To be responsible for internal audit. 

12. To be responsible for the procurement and commissioning of all 
contracts for the delivery and supply of all services to the Council and 
its residents including social care, housing and education. 

13. To be responsible, in conjunction with the Head of Policy, 
Performance and Partnerships for local business support and 
regeneration. (Economic Development) 

14. The Corporate Director of Finance has, in accordance with Section 
101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-delegated the day to day 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0
cm, Hanging:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Formatted: Bullets and
Numbering

Deleted: c

Deleted: c

Deleted: <#>To ensure that 
effective arrangements for 
insurance are in place and to 
take out insurance cover for all 
policies as necessary.¶

Page 26



responsibility for managing the services set out above to those 
officers who report directly to him.  The sub-delegations are set out in 
full in the Corporate Director of Finance’s Internal Scheme of 
Delegations. 

Delegations to the Borough Solicitor

1. To be the Council’s Monitoring Officer for the purposes of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. 

2. To institute any legal or formal proceedings on behalf of the Council 
which the Council could institute and to defend any prospective or 
actual legal or formal proceedings instituted against the Council, its 
members or officers and to appear by Counsel or in person or to 
authorise an officer to so appear in any proceedings and to verify a 
document by signing a Statement of Truth under the Civil Procedure 
Rules on behalf of the Council and to settle any actual or prospective 
proceedings. 

3. To certify copies of original documents for use in court proceedings. 

4. To suspend the Chief Executive pending an immediate summoning of 
the Investigations and Disciplinary Committee 

5. To authorise, on behalf of the local authority, any Officer to be 
appointed to the office of Governor or Director at an Academy. 

Delegations to the Head of Democratic Services

1. To act as the Electoral Registration Officer and the (Acting) Returning 
Officer for local and other elections. 

2. To act as the proper officer for the registration of Births, Deaths and 
Marriages. 

3. To certify the minutes of the Council, a committee or sub-committee 
and any report to such a meeting as a true copy. 

4. To designate approved duties for Members to claim travelling, 
subsistence and dependent care allowances. 

5. To make arrangements to hear appeals against pupil exclusions and 
appeals by Governing Bodies. 

Proper Officers for the Purposes of the Constitution

1. Officer to be advised of the Mayor’s view that a matter is one that 
ought to be treated as a key decision – Head of Democratic Services. 

Page 27



2. Officer to ensure that Access to Information rules as set out in the 
constitution are adhered to – Monitoring Officer. 

3. Officer to act as proper officer for registration of Births, Deaths and 
Marriages – Head of Democratic Services. 

4. Officer to be requested to call Council meetings in addition to 
ordinary meetings - Head of Democratic Services. 

5. Officer to be notified of the name of the person to whom it is 
proposed to make an offer of appointment as Chief Executive, Chief 
Officer and Deputy Chief Officer, Head of Human Resources. 

6. Officer to notify every member of the Cabinet of the name of a person 
to whom it is wished to make an offer of appointment as Chief 
Executive, Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer, and to whom any 
objections by the Leader to the proposal can be made – Head of 
Human Resources. 

7. Officer to be notified of the name of the person to whom it is 
proposed to dismiss as Chief Executive, Chief Officer and Deputy 
Chief Officer – Head of Human Resources. 

8. Officer to notify every member of the Cabinet of the name of a person 
[Chief Executive, Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer] who it is 
proposed to dismiss, and to whom any objections by the Leader to 
the proposal can be made – Head of Human Resources.

9. Officer to refer firm proposals for the budget and policy framework to 
Council for decision – Head of Democratic Services.

Page 28



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

PART 3 – SCHEME OF 
DELEGATION TO OFFICERS 

 
FUNCTIONS DELEGATED TO OFFICERS 
 
Preamble 
 
The full Council or the Cabinet have delegated the following functions to 
officers of the Council. 
 
All delegated powers are exercised in accordance with Council policies, within 
any financial limits imposed and within any guidelines prescribed by the 
Cabinet or appropriate Committee. 
 
Any action under these delegations shall strictly be in accordance with: 
 

(a) policies approved by the Council, the Leader, Cabinet, a Cabinet 
Member or a Council committee 

(b) the approved budget and approved management and business plans 
(c) the Council’s Financial Regulations, Standing Orders and Contract 

Rules. 
 
When exercising delegated powers on key matters, officers should maintain a 
close liaison with the relevant Cabinet Member and refer any proposed action 
to the Leader, Cabinet Member, or the Cabinet if so required by the Leader or 
the relevant Cabinet Member. 
 
Delegations to the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration  
 
The Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration is the officer 
responsible and accountable for: 
 

• Working closely with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet to agree 
strategy and targets for the Council 

• Providing leadership and direction in the achievement of the Council’s 
strategic objectives 

• Managing highest level external relationships 
• Supporting other Corporate Directors to address specific priority issues  

 
Specific delegations are: 
 
1. To be the Council’s Head of Paid Service for the purposes of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 

Page 29



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

2. To authorise generally or on any particular occasion an officer to 
exercise the delegated powers of any other officer. 

 
3. To give directions that a delegated power shall or shall not be 

exercised in a particular way and on the application of delegated 
powers in general, except any power vested in the Corporate Director 
of Social Care and Health and the education functions which are the 
responsibility of the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Residents Services.   

 
4. To agree the terms and conditions of employment of all staff (other 

than the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration) and 
the creation, deletion or amendment of all the Council’s HR policies 
and procedures except that any proposals for enhanced retirement 
packages shall be referred to the Pensions Committee for decision. 

 
5. To suspend the statutory s151 Officer and Monitoring Officer pending 

an immediate summoning of the Investigations and Disciplinary 
Committee. 

 
6. In respect of a Council capital project or revenue service, where an 

emergency or exceptionally urgent situation arises in relation to a 
commercial contract where: 
 
a) The Leader and Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 

Administration agree the urgency; 
b) There is no Cabinet meeting imminent; 
c) Any delay would seriously jeopardise the Council’s finances or its 

ability to deliver services and; 
d) A previous executive decision has been made or proposed in 

respect of the capital project or service provision concerned, 
 
authority is granted to the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 
Administration, subject to the written agreement of the Leader of the 
Council, to incur expenditure and make any new and necessary 
contractual decisions in order to secure the successful delivery of the 
project or service. 
 
In such instances, the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing 
Orders can be waived. Any decisions taken must be reported to a 
subsequent Cabinet meeting for formal ratification. 

 
7. To be responsible and accountable for the following services: 
 

• Democratic Services 
• Communications 
• Policy,  Performance and Partnerships  
• Human Resources 
• Legal Services 

 

Page 30



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

8. The Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration has, in 
accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-
delegated the day to day responsibility for managing the services set 
out above to those officers who report directly to her. 

 
The delegations to the Borough Solicitor and the Head of Democratic 
Services are detailed in this Part of the Constitution.  They are also set out in 
the Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Administration’s Internal 
Scheme of Delegations where the sub-delegations to her other Heads of 
Service can also be found. 
 
9. In conjunction with the Leader, to oversee the Hillingdon Improvement 

Programme and authorise expenditure on it. 
 
Delegations to the Deputy Chief Executive and the Corporate 
Director of Residents Services 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and the Corporate Director of Residents Services 
is the officer responsible and accountable for: 
 

• Transportation and Planning Policy 
• Public Safety 
• Adult Education 
• Libraries 
• Culture, Sport, Leisure 
• Corporate Property and Construction 
• Environment 
• Highways & Green Spaces 
• Consumer Protection 
• ICT and  Business Services 
• Education 
• Youth Services 
• Planning  
• Trading Standards 
• Environmental Protection 
• Housing [which includes maintenance, management and housing 

needs] 
• Anti-fraud and anti-corruption measures and enforcement in all areas 

across the whole Council 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services will 
specifically assist the Leader and the Chief Executive in relation to resident 
facing corporate working across the Council. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services, in 
conjunction with the Leader, will oversee the Business Improvement Delivery 
Programme and authorise expenditure on it. 
 
 

Page 31



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services, in 
conjunction with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Property and Business Services will oversee the development, construction 
and use of land and property assets across all Council Directorates, including 
the Housing Development Programme and be responsible for all such 
reporting to Members. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services 
has the delegated authority to deputise for the Council’s Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Administration in her absence. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services 
has, in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-
delegated the day to day responsibility for managing the services set out 
above to those officers who report directly to her.  The sub-delegations are set 
out in full in the Deputy Chief Executive’s Internal Scheme of Delegations. 
 
Specific Delegations, which may be sub-delegated, include: 
 
1. To take all procedural steps necessary prior to deciding whether to 

give a direction to admit a child in the borough to a specified 
voluntary aided or foundation school in accordance with section 97 of 
the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

 
2. To issue a direction to admit a child in the borough to a specified 

voluntary aided or foundation school in accordance with section 96 of 
the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

 
3. To request an Academy to admit a child in the Borough to it. 
 
Delegations to the Corporate Director of Social Care and 
Health  
 
The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is the officer responsible 
and accountable for: 
 

• Adult Services 
• Health 
• Access and Assessment 
• Personalised Services 
• Improvement in social care 
• Children and Families 

 
The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is to be responsible for all 
social services functions by being designated both the statutory Director of 
Adult Social Services and the statutory Director of Children’s Services. 
 
 
 

Page 32



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

Specifically, the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is: 
 
1. To be responsible for the delivery of local authority social services 

functions listed in Schedule 1 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970 (as amended). 

 
2. To have overall responsibility for those functions which relate to 

children which are set out in: 
 
 a) The Children Act 2004 and in particular Section 18; 
 
 b) Such other functions conferred on or exercisable by the Council 

as may be prescribed by the Secretary of State by regulation or 
which the Council may consider appropriate. 

 
The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health has, in accordance 
with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-delegated the 
day to day responsibility for managing the services set out above to 
those officers who report directly to her. The sub-delegations are set 
out in full in the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health’s Internal 
Scheme of Delegations. 

 
General Delegations to the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief 
Executive and the Corporate Directors of Social Care and 
Health and Finance 
 
These delegations are to the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive and 
the Corporate Directors of Social Care and Health and Finance who may 
discharge the function through one of his/her staff.  
 
1. To take any steps necessary for the day to day management and 

administration of any matters within the designated area of 
responsibility and to take overall responsibility for the performance of 
their service area. 

 
2. To take all such action as ordinarily falls within the scope of 

professional responsibility and deal with all other matters delegated or 
to be delegated by Council, Cabinet, Cabinet Member or the Chief 
Executive and Corporate Director of Administration. 

 
3. To manage any budget for which the Deputy Chief 

Executive/Corporate Directors have lead responsibility within the 
approved cash limit, provided that no action is taken which would result 
in growth in future years or which would affect a budget which is not 
under the chief officer’s direct control.  This includes authorising 
virements in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules which can be found in Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 
4. To exercise the council’s functions in obtaining registrations, licences, 

certificates or other similar documents required by the council, its 

Page 33



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

officers or in respect of its premises from any authority or body not 
being the council. 

 
5. To exercise the council’s right of objection against any application 

made by third parties for registration, certificates, licences, orders and 
other similar matters. 

 
6. To register, issue or grant licences (not being occupational licences), 

notices, certificates, orders or similar documents which the council are 
authorised or required to register, issue, grant, give or make by or 
under any enactment. 

 
7. To exercise discretion in writing off or remitting in whole or in part debts 

of up to £5,000 due to the council, but only after all reasonable steps to 
recover them have been taken.  

 
8. Within their designated area of responsibility and subject to 1) any 

corporate property standards, 2) Procurement and Contract Standing 
Orders and 3) the agreement of the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Residents Services to acquire or grant 
easements and leases for a term not exceeding seven years less 2 
days and to acquire or dispose of any other interests in land the value 
of which does not exceed £10,000.  

 
9. Subject to compliance with any corporate property standards and the 

Procurement and Contract Standing Orders, to take any steps for the 
proper and effective management of such property falling within their 
designated area of responsibility, subject to the agreement of the 
Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services. 

 
10. In accordance with the Council’s Personnel Procedures, but subject to 

the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, to appoint to, dismiss from 
and amend posts within the chief officer’s area of responsibility. 

 
11. In accordance with the Council’s HR Procedures to suspend, other 

than the three Statutory Officers, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief 
Officers within their area of responsibility. 

 
12. To agree compensation payments not exceeding £1000 under the 

Council’s Complaints Procedure. 
 
13. To make decisions in respect of quotations, tenders, consultants, 

agency & temporary workers and contracts in accordance with the 
Procurement and Contract Standing Orders – Schedule H. 

 
14. To exercise all of the powers of Approved Officers for the purposes of 

the Procurement and Contract Standing Orders. 
 
15. To enter into agreements, on behalf of the Council incurring match 

funding or a revenue commitment from the Council, subject to the 

Page 34



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

Cabinet having previously agreed the proposal including the final level 
of Council commitment. 

 
16. In conjunction with the Leader and relevant Cabinet Member, to sign-

off expenditure for approved Initiatives. 
 
Delegations to the Corporate Director of Finance 
 
1. To act as and exercise the functions of the “chief finance officer” 

meaning the officer designated under section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  These functions include:  

 
 (a)  Responsibility for general grants, accounting systems, corporate 

accounts, external audit liaison and insurance. 
 
 (b) Responsibility for the medium term financial forecast, budget 

preparation and monitoring, financial appraisals of all service 
areas and VAT.  

 
 (c) Responsibility for income collecting arrangements including 

rents, council tax, business rates, service charges, mortgages, 
education recoupment and social care charges.  

 
2. To exercise the Council’s functions regarding the demanding of 

National Non-Domestic Rate and the Council Tax and the collection 
and recovery of all sums owing in respect thereof and regarding all 
matters involving valuation for rating purposes, and for these purposes 
to authorise officers to represent the Council in magistrates’ courts, the 
Local Valuation Court or the Valuation and Community Charge Council 
Tax, Tribunals. 

 
3. To implement the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy which has 

adopted CIPFA’s “Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local 
Authorities” and to control all money in the hands of the Council in 
accordance with this CIPFA code by taking all executive decisions on 
borrowing, investment or financing including, without limitation, the 
power: -  

 
(i) to raise money pursuant to any authority to borrow. 
(ii) to make temporary investments of monies by way of loan 

provided proper security is deposited with the Council’s bankers. 
(iii) to make advances from the Consolidated Loans Fund or other 

funds held by the Council. 
(iv) to buy or sell investments of any kind. 
 

4. To have regard to CIPFA’s “Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities” when considering all matters relating to capital 
finance, as defined by Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.  This 
involves establishing procedures to monitor performance against all 
forward looking prudential indicators and ensuring that the following 

Page 35



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

matters are taken into account when prudential indicators are set or 
revised: - 
 
i.Affordability; 
ii.Prudence and sustainability; 
iii. Value for money; 
iv.Stewardship of assets; 
v.Service objectives; and 
vi.Practicality. 
 

5. To administer and manage the council’s pension fund in accordance 
with the regulations and with policy set by the pensions committee. 

 
6 To administer any funds which are approved by the council and which 

are pursuant to the effective management of the council’s finances. 
 
7. To review and amend Financial Regulations. 
 
8. To set the rate of interest for mortgages and loans. 
 
9. To be responsible for all aspects of payroll provision. 
 
10. To be responsible for the calculation and payment of all benefits, 

including council tax, housing, community care grants, other general 
grants and the universal credit.  

 
11. To be responsible for internal audit.  
 
12. To be responsible for the procurement and commissioning of all 

contracts for the delivery and supply of all services to the Council and 
its residents including social care, housing and education.  

 
13. To be responsible, in conjunction with the Head of Policy, 

Performance and Partnerships for local business support and 
regeneration. (Economic Development)  

 
14. The Corporate Director of Finance has, in accordance with Section 

101 of the Local Government Act 1972, sub-delegated the day to day 
responsibility for managing the services set out above to those 
officers who report directly to him.  The sub-delegations are set out in 
full in the Corporate Director of Finance’s Internal Scheme of 
Delegations.  

 
Delegations to the Borough Solicitor 
 
1. To be the Council’s Monitoring Officer for the purposes of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 
2. To institute any legal or formal proceedings on behalf of the Council 

which the Council could institute and to defend any prospective or 

Page 36



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

actual legal or formal proceedings instituted against the Council, its 
members or officers and to appear by Counsel or in person or to 
authorise an officer to so appear in any proceedings and to verify a 
document by signing a Statement of Truth under the Civil Procedure 
Rules on behalf of the Council and to settle any actual or prospective 
proceedings. 

 
3. To certify copies of original documents for use in court proceedings. 
 
4. To suspend the Chief Executive pending an immediate summoning of 

the Investigations and Disciplinary Committee 
 
5. To authorise, on behalf of the local authority, any Officer to be 

appointed to the office of Governor or Director at an Academy. 

Delegations to the Head of Democratic Services 
 
1. To act as the Electoral Registration Officer and the (Acting) Returning 

Officer for local and other elections. 
 
2. To act as the proper officer for the registration of Births, Deaths and 

Marriages. 
 
3. To certify the minutes of the Council, a committee or sub-committee 

and any report to such a meeting as a true copy. 
 
4. To designate approved duties for Members to claim travelling, 

subsistence and dependent care allowances. 
 
5. To make arrangements to hear appeals against pupil exclusions and 

appeals by Governing Bodies. 
 
Proper Officers for the Purposes of the Constitution 
 

1. Officer to be advised of the Mayor’s view that a matter is one that 
ought to be treated as a key decision – Head of Democratic Services. 

 
2. Officer to ensure that Access to Information rules as set out in the 

constitution are adhered to – Monitoring Officer. 
 

3. Officer to act as proper officer for registration of Births, Deaths and 
Marriages – Head of Democratic Services. 

 
4. Officer to be requested to call Council meetings in addition to 

ordinary meetings - Head of Democratic Services. 
 

5. Officer to be notified of the name of the person to whom it is 
proposed to make an offer of appointment as Chief Executive, Chief 
Officer and Deputy Chief Officer, Head of Human Resources. 

 

Page 37



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

6. Officer to notify every member of the Cabinet of the name of a person 
to whom it is wished to make an offer of appointment as Chief 
Executive, Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer, and to whom any 
objections by the Leader to the proposal can be made – Head of 
Human Resources. 

 
7. Officer to be notified of the name of the person to whom it is 

proposed to dismiss as Chief Executive, Chief Officer and Deputy 
Chief Officer – Head of Human Resources. 

 
8. Officer to notify every member of the Cabinet of the name of a person 

[Chief Executive, Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer] who it is 
proposed to dismiss, and to whom any objections by the Leader to 
the proposal can be made – Head of Human Resources. 

 
9. Officer to refer firm proposals for the budget and policy framework to 

Council for decision – Head of Democratic Services. 
 

Page 38



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

THE HILLINGDON LOCAL PLAN 
 
Reporting Officer: Head of Democratic Services 
 
7.1 Summary 
 
1. The Council agreed at its meeting in September 2011 that the Local 

Development Framework Pre-Submission Draft Core Strategy and its 
associated documents be submitted to the Secretary of State for formal 
examination. 

 
2. The hearings for the Examination in Public were held between 13 – 15 March 

and on 30 May 2012. A subsequent report by the Inspector who conducted the 
Examination in Public was published on 26 July. 

 
3. The Inspector summarised his findings as follows: 
 
 “…that the Hillingdon Local Plan Part I Strategic Policies … (the former Core 

Strategy)…provides appropriate and sound policies to guide the planning of the 
Borough over the next 15 years, provided two Main Modifications are made.  
These are to include the presumption in favour of sustainable development, 
and to include a new Policy T5 to require developer contributions to Crossrail.  
The former is necessary for consistency with the National Planning Policy 
Framework, and the latter is necessary to conform to the London Plan.  I am 
satisfied that there has been adequate opportunity for comment on those 
Policies, and that therefore it is unnecessary for the Council to advertise those 
Modifications before it proceeds to adopt the Local Plan.  The Council has 
requested that I recommend those Modifications.  The Plan will provide a sound 
basis for Part II of the Local Plan, which will contain detailed site allocations, 
development management policies, and a policies map.”   

 
4. A report recommending adoption of the former Core Strategy as Part One of 

the Hillingdon Local Plan with the modifications recommended by the Inspector, 
together with a set of 2007 Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies which is 
to serve as an interim Part Two of the Local Plan, was approved by the Cabinet 
at its meeting on 27 September 2012. (Appendix B) 

 
5. Formal adoption of the Local Plan is now being sought at this full Council 

meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That: 
 
(a)  the revised text detailed in Appendix A and included in the “Hillingdon 

Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies” be adopted as Council policy; 
and 

 
(b)  the 2007 Saved Unitary Development Plan policies approved by the 

Cabinet at its meeting on 27 September 2012 be adopted as the 
“Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two”, pending the preparation and adoption 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

of site specific allocations, development management policies and a 
policies map. 

  
7.2 INFORMATION  
 
Further Minor Text Editing Changes to Part One of the Local Plan  
 
2.1 Before approving adoption of the Local Plan, the Council are asked to note that 

Cabinet approved the following action (at point 4 in the 27 September report's 
recommendations) which stated it: 

 
 "Grants delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate 

Director of Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services to 
agree, in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and 
Recycling to make any further minor editing and textual changes to the 
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies and Hillingdon Local Plan: 
Part Two, before they are adopted at full Council." 

 
2.2 Officers have compiled a schedule of minor text changes, attached as 

Appendix A to this report, largely to clarify the content of some sections of the 
Plan, e.g. regarding document references used in the text or revised paragraph 
numbering to reflect text changes required following the Examination in Public 
and Inspector’s report. The full revised text of Part One of the Local Plan 
incorporating all the changes shown in Appendix A is available on line as an 
attachment to this report and copies have been placed in the Group Offices. 

 
2.3 Members’ attention is drawn in particular to recent changes made in September 

to national policy guidance, the “Building for Life” design standards published 
by the Design Council, a Government agency. These are intended to promote 
better housing design nationally. They specifically require a number of minor 
editing changes to the Local Plan.  

 
2.4 Policy BE1 (4) in Part One of the Plan currently refers to the 2008 "Building for 

Life" standards and states that the Council will apply these standards when 
considering new housing developments comprising 10 or more homes. The 
2008 standards covered 20 design criteria - the latest September 2012 criteria 
have been reduced to 12 in total. To reflect this change, officers propose 
amending policy BE1 (4) from the current wording: 

 
 “In the case of 10 dwellings or over, achieve a Building for Life assessment 

rating of 'silver' as a minimum (this includes 'good and 'very good' scorings)” 
 
 to read: 
 
 “In the case of 10 dwellings or over, achieve a satisfactory assessment rating in 

terms of the latest Building for Life standards (as amended or replaced from 
time to time)” 

 
2.5 Various sections in the Local Plan which also refer to the Building for Life 

standards will also be amended as shown in Appendix A (i.e. at paragraph 

Page 40



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

7.10, in the Implementation and Monitoring sections accompanying policy BE 1 
and in the Glossary). 

 
2.6 It should be noted that the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director of 

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services has agreed, in 
conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and 
Recycling to the minor editing and textual changes as set out in Appendix A. 

 
3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 The Hillingdon Local Plan will in due course replace the Unitary Development 

Plan Saved Policies, 2007. It will provide an up-to-date strategic land use 
planning policy framework through to 2026 with which to determine planning 
applications. The full revised text of the Part One Strategic Policies in the Plan, 
incorporating all the proposed minor text changes, is set out in the version 
available on line as an attachment to this report and copies have been placed 
in the Group Offices. 

 
3.2 Initially, the majority of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies, 2007 will 

serve as Part Two of the Local Plan. In his report in July the Inspector 
emphasised that the Council should now proceed to bring forward as quickly as 
possible sets of borough wide development management policies and site 
development proposals together with a new proposals map (now known as a 
“policies map”) which will form Part Two, i.e. the detailed local policies on 
design and land use required to determine planning applications and appeals. 

 
3.3 Subject to the Council’s agreement to the adoption of the Local Plan, it will be 

formally published and there will then follow a statutory period of six weeks 
during which any final legal challenge can be made. 

 
4. Legal and Financial Implications  
  
 None arising from this report. 
 

Background Papers: None 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Appendix A 
 

Schedule of Minor Text Changes to Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – 
Strategic Policies 

 
Item Policy/ 

paragraph 
Text amendment: 

To be consistent 
with minor changes 
previously agreed 

Throughout the 
document, SO3  

SO3: Improve the quality of, and accessibility to, the 
heritage value of the borough’s open spaces, including 
rivers and canals as areas for sports, recreation, visual 
interest, biodiversity, education, health and well being. In 
addition, address open space needs by providing new 
spaces identified in Hillingdon's Open Space Study 
Strategy. 
 

Full text of 
abbreviation added. 

Throughout the 
document  

Replace ‘AMR’ with ‘Annual Monitoring Report’ 

 
Full text for hectares 
added 

Throughout the 
document 

Replace ‘ha’ with ‘hectares’ 

Full text for 
Transport for London 
added 

Throughout the 
document 

Replace ‘TfL’ with ‘Transport for London’. 

 

 
South Ruislip library 
original address 
added as it has now 
been refurbished. 

Table after para 
2.1 

Amended to read: 
 
South Ruislip operating from Learning & Development 
Centre, Queen's Walk, HA4 0LR  Victoria Road, South 
Ruislip, HA4 0JE 
 

Minor editing change 
- reference to 
replacement London 
Plan deleted and 
wording updated to 
reflect 2011 London 
Plan. 

Para. 5.30 Amended to read: 
 
Heathrow Opportunity Area (OA) is a London Plan 
growth area and currently includes Hayes, West Drayton, 
Feltham, Bedfont Lakes, and Hounslow and Southall, 
although the replacement London Plan (2009) proposes 
to separate the latter into an Opportunity Area of its own. 
This Core Strategy Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- 
Strategic Policies defines the Hillingdon Heathrow OA as 
an area including the Hayes/ West Drayton Corridor, 
Stockley Park and the area within and around Heathrow 
Airport. This is shown on Map 5.1. 
 

Minor text change. 
 

Table 5.3 Section on ‘Source’ moved to form a footnote to read: 
 
Following the coalition government’s decision to cancel a 
third runway at Heathrow, the emphasis of the 
Government’s new South East Airports Taskforce was to 
investigate the options “to make best use of the existing 
airport infrastructure” to ensure “improving efficiency and 
reliability and reducing delay” Source: South East 
Airports Taskforce, Draft Terms of Reference and 
Membership, 15 June 2010.  As such, in line with this 
policy the Government will produce an Aviation Policy 
Framework during 2013 which will detail its future 
approach on airport provision. The Council are broadly 
supportive of the aspirations to deliver a programme of 

Page 43



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Item Policy/ 
paragraph 

Text amendment: 

renewal at Heathrow, subject to no further expansion of 
the airport. Detailed projects are set out in Appendix 2 
(draft infrastructure schedule).  The Council will continue 
its collaborative working with the Airport regarding future 
uses within its boundaries. 
 
Footnote 26: Source: South East Airports Taskforce, 
Draft Terms of Reference and Membership, 15 June 
2010) 
 

Minor editing 
changes: 
 
a) Replace 3,350 
with 3,345 sq.m to 
reflect figure in Table 
14. 

  
b) Footnote, replace 
‘Table 6’ with ‘Table 
14’ which refers to  
‘net additional 
comparison goods 
floorspace 
requirements by 
town centre (2011 - 
2031) using 2.2% 
growth’. 

Table 5.3, 
Hayes Town 
Centre, Future 
growth 

Amended to read: 
 
Future growth 
There has already been significant developer interest in 
Hayes with major new investment at London Gate (Blyth 
Road) and Hyde Park (Millington Road). Ballymore’s 
High Point development is a mixed-use scheme with a 
range of affordable housing provision aimed at housing 
local families. The introduction of Crossrail will create 
further regeneration opportunities through an improved 
transport interchange and help the town centre develop a 
new identity as the location for small and emerging 
businesses, suitable for business start-up units, small-
scale offices and mixed use development. The Council 
will also seek to make the best use of the Grand Union 
Canal in the regeneration process. Hayes is identified as 
having capacity for an additional 3,350 3, 345 sq.m of 
comparison retail floorspace for the plan period (27) 
which will be accommodated within the existing town 
centre. The Grand Union Canal offers an attractive and 
sustainable alternative for pedestrian and cycle routes 
through the area. 
 
Footnote 27:  
Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail 
Floorspace Need in London, Table 14 (Greater London 
Authority, March 2009) 
 

Minor editing change  
to footnotes, replace 
‘Table 6’ with ‘Table 
14’ which refers to 
‘net additional 
comparison goods 
floorspace 
requirements by 
town centre (2011 - 
2031) using 2.2% 
growth’. 

Table 5.3, 
Yiewsley/ West 
Drayton, Future 
growth 
 
 
 
Table 5.4, 
Uxbridge Town 
Centre, Future 
Growth, last 
sentence  
 
Para 5.36  
 

Amended to read: 
 
Footnote 28:  
Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail 
Floorspace Need in London, Table 14 (Greater London 
Authority, March 2009).  
 
Footnote 31: 
Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail 
Floorspace Need in London, Table 14 
(Greater London Authority, March 2009) Table 6)  
 
 
Footnote 32:  
Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail 
Floorspace Need in London, Table 14 (Greater London 
Authority, March 2009) Table 6).  
 
 
 

Page 44



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Item Policy/ 
paragraph 

Text amendment: 

Minor text change. Table 
5.4, Uxbridge 
Future Growth   

Second paragraph delete 'Policy' and replace with 
'Policies’ to read: 
 
Uxbridge Business Park has more generous parking 
allowances for new office development than Hillingdon 
which adheres to London-wide ratios. In order to ensure 
the future of Uxbridge as a commercially competitive 
location, this Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic 
Policies will improve public transport links and 
interchanges and encourage a more sustainable 
approach to transportation through Policy Policies T1 and 
T2. 
 

Revised paragraph 
numbering inserted  

Implementation 
of Policy E5 

Amended to read: 
 
Implementation of Policy E5:  how we will achieve 
this 
Policy E5 will be delivered by applying national, regional 
and local policies and the conclusions of the current 
evidence base.  For clarity, the current evidence base 
documents are identified at paragraphs 5.33 - 5.35 5.41 - 
5.45. 
 
In addition to the expansion of town centre boundaries 
proposed in this plan, increases in comparison and 
convenience retail floor space will be achieved through 
the redevelopment of existing sites, refurbishment of 
existing retail units or the intensification 
of existing floorspace. Sites to be redeveloped will be 
identified in the Site Specific Allocations LDD as 
appropriate. 
 

Symbols (> and <) 
replaced with text 
and ‘ha’ replaced 
with ‘hectares’ 

Para. 6.19 Amended to read: 
 
Tables 6.4, 6.5 and Map 6.1 use the SHLAA data for 
large (>) over 0.25 ha hectares) and small (< under 0.25 
ha hectares) sites to provide an indication of when and 
where new homes could come forward in the borough. 
The figures in the table should be used with care and it is 
important to note that:  
   

• The distribution of dwellings shown in Table 6.3 
and Map 6.1 only reflect units identified for 
delivery from large sites (over 0.25 hectares). 

• Figures for small sites are based on trend data 
and cannot be mapped in Map 6.1. 

• Tables 6.4 and 6.5 exclude predicted 
completions for non self-contained units (47 units 
per annum) 

• Tables 6.4 and 6.5 are based on the 10 year time 
frame for the London Plan and the SHLAA data 
cannot be used to show the distribution of new 
dwellings beyond 2021. 

• Figures for the Heathrow Opportunity Area are 
inclusive of identified completions in the Hayes/ 
West Drayton Corridor. 

 
 

Page 45



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Item Policy/ 
paragraph 

Text amendment: 

Symbols (> and <) 
replaced with text 
and ‘ha’ replaced 
with ‘hectares’ 

Table 6.4 Replace ‘>’ symbol with ‘over’ and ‘<’ symbol with ‘under’ 
and replace ‘ha’ with ‘hectares’. 

Reference to 
‘replacement’ 
London Plan 
removed and 
updated 

Flexibility box 
after para. 6.24 
& 
Implementation 
of Policy H1 

 

The proposed annual monitoring target is a minimum 
figure set by the Mayor and the Council is free to exceed 
this.  A revised annual monitoring target may be set 
through the production of a revised SHLAA and an early 
alteration to the Replacement London Plan (2011). 

 
Minor text change. Monitoring of 

Policy H3 
Amended to read: 

Monitoring of Policy H3: how we will measure 
success 

• H4 (Core) Indicator: Net additional pitches 
(Gypsy and Traveller). Target to be set  following 
further work on the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2- 
Site Specific Allocations LDD; and 

• Meeting the needs of the existing travelling 
community in the borough by protecting and 
maintaining the site at Colne Park. 

To reflect recent 
changes to Building 
for Life Standards 

Para 7.10 Amend para 7.9 to read: 
  
The Hillingdon Local Plan is required to monitor the 
design performance of development through ‘Building for 
Life’, the national standards for well designed homes and 
neighbourhoods. The criteria have been designed so as 
to establish an objective set of principles by which the 
judgement of applications and the built quality of housing 
can be undertaken consistently. Each housing 
development scheme is awarded a score out of 20, 
based on the proportion of Building for Life questions that 
are answered positively. Scores include the Gold 
Standard (16 or more out of 20) and Silver Standard (14 
or more out of 20).  For residential schemes, all new 
developments of 10 dwellings or over should achieve a 
satisfactory Building for Life assessment rating of silver 
standard as a minimum. 
 

To reflect recent 
changes to Building 
for Life Standards 

Policy BE1 Policy BE1, point 4 amended to read: 
 
In the case of 10 dwellings or over, achieve a Building for 
Life assessment rating of  'silver' as a minimum (this 
includes 'good and 'very good' scorings) satisfactory 
assessment rating in terms of the latest Building for Life 
standards (as amended or replaced from time to time). 
 

To reflect recent 
changes to Building 
for Life Standards 

Implementation 
of Policy BE1 

Amended to read: 
 
Implementation of Policy BE1- how we will achieve 
this: 
 
In relation to new development, developers will have to 
justify their design decisions within a Design and Access 

Page 46



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Item Policy/ 
paragraph 

Text amendment: 

Statement for each application. For residential schemes 
of over 10 units, developers will need to demonstrate 
how the ‘Building for Life’ criteria are met and how the 
proposal will meet at least a 'silver' a satisfactory 
standard. There will be more detailed policies within the 
Development Management Policies Local Development 
Document and Supplementary Planning Documents on 
specific design and public realm issues. 
 

To reflect recent 
changes to Building 
for Life Standards 

Monitoring of 
Policy BE1 

Amend point 4 to read: 
 
Monitoring of Policy BE1 - how we will measure 
success of policy BE1: 
  
The AMR (Core Indicator H6 on Housing Quality) will 
monitor the number and proportion of total new build 
completions on housing sites reaching 'very good' (16 
points or more/ Gold Standard) and ‘good' (14 -15 points/ 
Silver Standard), 'average' (10-14 points) and 'poor' (10 
points or less) ratings a satisfactory rating against the 
Building for Life criteria. 
 

 Glossary: 
 

Amend glossary to read: 
 
Building for Life 
 
The national standard for well-designed homes and 
neighbourhoods. A Building for Life assessment scores 
the design quality of planned or completed housing 
developments against 20 12 Building for Life criteria. For 
further information refer to www.buildingforlife.org. 
 
 

Titles changed 
throughout section 8 
to be consistent with 
other policy sections 
in the Plan  

Implementation 
and monitoring 
of policies EM1 
to EM11 

Implementation of Policy EM1- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM1- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM2- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM2- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM3- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM3- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM4- how we will achieve this: 
Monitoring of Policy EM4- how we will measure success: 
 
Implementation of Policy EM5- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM5- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM6- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM6- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM7- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM7- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM8- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM8- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM9- how we will achieve this 

Page 47



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Item Policy/ 
paragraph 

Text amendment: 

Monitoring of Policy EM9- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM10- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM10- how we will measure success 
 
Implementation of Policy EM11- how we will achieve this 
Monitoring of Policy EM11- how we will measure success 
 

Delete 'CP2' to 
correspond with 
MIN52 change 
already agreed 

Section 8, 
Climate Change 
Adaptation and 
Mitigation, 
Strategic 
Objectives box 
following 
paragraph 8.3 
 

Delete 'CP2' and replace with BE1 to correspond with 
MIN52 change already agreed to read: 
 
Related policies: EM1, EM7, EM8, CP2 BE1, T1 
 

For clarification Implementation 
of Policy EM2 
 

Implementation of Policy EM2- how we will achieve 
this 
The Council will implement Policy EM2: 
 
Through the development management process, in 
accordance with national policy for Green Belts and 
Metropolitan Open Land.  Anomalies in local boundaries 
will be rectified through Local Development Documents in 
accordance with the NPPF National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Green Chains will be reviewed for designation as 
Metropolitan Open Land and designated through Local 
Development Documents as appropriate, in accordance 
with the London Plan policies. 
 

Title of PPG 24 
removed. 

Para 8.138 Noise: Guidance has already been set out at the national 
level by the NPPF: Planning and Noise. This guidance 
sets out a clear rationale as to where sensitive 
development should be located in relation to existing 
noise/pollution sources, and also provides guidance on 
where potentially noise polluting development should be 
located. 
 

Revise to reflect new 
paragraph 
numbering. 
 

Implementation 
of Policy EM8 

Change paragraph numbers in the second bullet to read: 
 
The Council will implement Policy EM8 by: 

• Preparing a Local Development Document for 
the Heathrow area set out in Policy E3 and 
paragraph 5.32 of Chapter 5. 

Minor text change. Policy CI2 Policy CI2: Leisure and Recreation 

6th main bullet: 

Delete ‘and’ at the end of the sentence 

• Capitalising on opportunities to supply new 
sporting and associated facilities in the Borough 

Page 48



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 
 

Item Policy/ 
paragraph 

Text amendment: 

to support the legacy of the 2012 Olympics; and. 

Minor text change. Appendix 2 
Infrastructure 
Schedule 

Amend entry re Harlington Road Deport to note scheme 
“To be determined”  

 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

APPENDIX B 
REPORT TO CABINET 27 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
HILLINGDON LOCAL PLAN: PART ONE – STRATEGIC POLICIES 
(FORMERLY CORE STRATEGY) 
 
Cabinet Member  Councillor Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio  Planning, Transportation & Recycling 
   
Officer Contact  Jales Tippell – Planning, Environment, Education and Community 

Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix 1 - Text of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic 

Policies (revised Core Strategy) 
Appendix 2 - Proposed Policies for Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two 
(DOCUMENTS CIRCULATED SEPERATELY) 

 
1. HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Purpose of report 
 

 This report: 
(i) informs Cabinet of the outcome of the Examination in Public 
held earlier this year on Hillingdon’s Submission Draft Core 
Strategy; 
(ii) seeks approval to adopt the revised text shown in Appendix 
One as the “Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies”; 
and 
(iii) seeks approval to adopt the 2007 Saved Unitary Development 
Plan policies as the “Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two” with the 
exception of the policies to be deleted shown in Appendix Two, 
pending the preparation and adoption of site specific allocations, 
development management policies and a policies map.  
 

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies 
(previously referred to as the Core Strategy) aligns closely with the 
Sustainable Community Strategy and contributes to delivering key 
plans and strategies, in particular the Transport Strategy, 
Economic Development Strategy and Housing Strategy. 
 

   
Financial Cost  The cost of adopting the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – 

Strategic Policies and of preparing and consulting on the 
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two can be met from existing revenue 
budgets for 2012/13 and 2013/14. 
 

   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview 
Committee. 

   
Ward(s) affected  All 

Page 249



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Cabinet:- 
 
1. Notes the outcome of the Examination in Public held earlier this year on 

Hillingdon’s Submission Draft Core Strategy. 
2. Recommends to the next full Council meeting that it adopts the revised text shown 

at Appendix 1 as the “Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies”. 
3. Recommends to the next full Council meeting that it adopts the 2007 Saved Unitary 

Development Plan policies as the “Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two” with the 
exception of the policies to be deleted shown at Appendix 2, pending the 
preparation and adoption of site specific allocations, development management 
policies and a policies map. 

4. Grants delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director 
of Planning, Environment, Education  and Community Services to agree, in 
conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling 
to make any further minor editing and textual changes to the Hillingdon Local 
Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies and Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two, before 
they are adopted at full Council. 

 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
Following the Cabinet meeting in July 2011, Council agreed at its meeting in September 2011 
that the Local Development Framework Pre-Submission Draft Core Strategy and its associated 
documents be submitted to the Secretary of State for formal examination. 
 
The hearings for the Examination in Public were held between 13 – 15 March and on 30 May 
2012. Following these hearings, the Inspector published his Report on the Examination in Public 
on 26 July. 
 
These recommendations are sought to inform Cabinet of the outcome of the Examination in 
Public and to enable the council to make meaningful progress on the Hillingdon Local Plan 
(formerly the Local Development Framework) in order to meet targets previously approved in 
the council’s Local Development Scheme. 
 
It should be noted that the Hillingdon Local Plan will in due course replace the Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies, 2007. The Part 1 Strategic Policies in the Hillingdon Local 
Plan will provide an up-to-date strategic land use planning policy framework through to 2026 
with which to determine planning applications.  
 
Part 2 of the Local Plan will contain the detailed local policies on design and land use required 
to determine planning applications and appeals. It will comprise sets of borough wide 
development management policies and site development proposals together with a new 
proposals map (now known as a “policies map”).  Whilst it is in preparation, Members need to 
decide upon those existing adopted policies from the Unitary Development Plan which they wish 
to continue using for determining planning applications in the light of the adoption of the 2011 
London Plan, the introduction by the Government of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) in March 2012 and the findings of the Inspector’s Report. 
 
Alternative options considered / risk management 
 
The Cabinet may decline to recommend adoption of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – 
Strategic Policies. Alternatively Cabinet may not approve the major changes proposed by the 

Page 250



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

Inspector or the minor changes brought forward during the Examination in Public and which he 
has subsequently endorsed in order that the Plan can be considered sound. 
 
It is considered that these alternative options would prejudice progress on the preparation of the 
Hillingdon Local Plan as a whole, resulting in targets in the Local Development Scheme being 
missed, the requirements of the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework for 
introducing an updated local planning policy framework not being met and, failing to provide the 
council with an up-to-date statutory development plan in order to deal with future development 
proposals. 
  
Comments of Policy Overview Committee(s) 
 
The Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee have been involved in 
the last few years in the wider development of these core planning policies. 
 
3. INFORMATION 
 
Supporting Information 
 
Submission Draft Core Strategy – Summary of Contents and Key Provisions 
 
1. Following the Cabinet meeting in July 2011, Council agreed at its meeting in September 

2011 that the Local Development Framework Pre-Submission Draft Core Strategy and its 
associated documents be submitted to the Secretary of State for formal examination.  
The draft Core Strategy was submitted to the Secretary of State for formal examination 
on 31 October 2011.  The format and contents were largely prescribed by the 2004 and 
2008 Planning Acts and previous national planning policy guidance (Planning Policy 
Statement 12 or PPS12). In summary it comprises nine chapters as follows:- 

 
• An Introduction 
• A Summary of the seven point Vision for Hillingdon 
• A Portrait of Hillingdon – Hillingdon’s Characteristics; Key Facts; Main Challenges; 

and Major Infrastructure Projects. 
• The Vision expanded, including Strategic Objectives to deliver the Vision; the Spatial 

Strategy; and Key Diagram  
• Chapters 5 to 9 comprise 5 separate chapters organised into distinct spatial topics 

with Core Policies dealing with The Economy; New Homes; Historic and Built 
Environment; Environmental Management; and Transport and Infrastructure. 

 
2. The headline provisions can be described and quantified as follows:- 
 

• Housing and employment growth, comprising 5,475 new dwellings and 9,000 new 
jobs up to 2026. 

• Protection of designated employment land together with the managed release of 
17.58 hectares of employment land for other uses. 

• Economic regeneration and employment growth concentrated in the Hayes / West 
Drayton corridor, anchored by Crossrail. 

• Maximising the economic benefits of Heathrow (with no third runway) and mitigating 
the negative environmental impacts. 

• The expansion of Uxbridge town centre to accommodate 18, 855 square metres of 
retail floorspace. 

• Enhanced District Centres with a diversified, community focused role. 

Page 251



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

• Protection and enhanced accessibility to open spaces, Green Belt and Metropolitan 
Open Land. 

• Preservation of the borough’s built heritage and improvement to the built 
environment. 

• Improved north – south public transport routes and enhanced transport interchanges, 
together with the promotion of walking and cycling. 

• Local response to Climate Change achieved through Environmental Management, 
including biodiversity, air quality, flooding and protection of mineral deposits. 

 
Examination in Public 
 
3. Following submission of the Core Strategy a preliminary hearing for the Council and 

Representors was subsequently held with the Inspector on 11th January and first group 
of seven hearings took place at Uxbridge Civic Centre between 13th-15th March. Each 
hearing was attended by between 15-35 people. Representors present included local 
community group representatives, consultants, a local Member of Parliament, Councillors 
and interested local residents.  

 
4. The Planning Inspector, Douglas Machin, set an intensive programme which included 

two evening hearings and decided on a series of "key matters" for discussion. The issues 
which came up in questioning from representors included: 

 
• whether the Heathrow T5 Green Belt designation should now be deleted from the 

Core Strategy; 
• whether the Core Strategy concentrates too much on development issues south of 

the A40 and ignores the north; 
• should there be a more flexible overall approach to new retail provision and should 

the employment land policy be phrased more flexibly – i.e. to allow a greater release 
of employment sites in future; 

• should the Strategy be updated to reflect the position with the HS2 proposal;  
• whether there should generally be more detail on site availability in the borough for 

future retail, housing, hotels, school and other types of development as well as for 
meeting specialist needs such as for affordable housing, student accommodation 
and accommodation for Gypsies and Travellers, in order to assess the deliverability 
of the Core Strategy;  

• whether the emphasis on future development in the south of the borough would lead 
to more concerns on environmental issues such as excessive traffic generation or 
low air quality;  

• whether the Core Strategy sufficiently reflects other Council strategies e.g. on air 
quality, education or biodiversity; 

• does the Strategy give sufficient detail on planned transport improvements or 
address issues of poor public transport provision in some parts of the borough – e.g. 
the Heathrow villages. 

 
5. Following the end of the first set of hearings, the Inspector also carried out a set of site 

visits in the borough on 20th March. Various Representors asked him to view specific 
sites in connection with the Core Strategy policies. The sites he visited included 
Tavistock Road, Lake Farm School, the Nestles Factory in Hayes, Millington Road, 
Heathrow Terminal 5, and the South Ruislip Arla Foods and Sainsbury's store sites. 

 
6.  An original proposal to hold a further set of hearings concentrating on retail policies, 

programmed for 23rd April, had to be deferred following the publication of the 
Government’s Planning Policy for Traveller Sites on 26th March and the final National 

Page 252



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

Planning Policy Framework on 27th March. The Inspector asked that the Council and 
Representors consider whether the policies and proposals in the Core Strategy were also 
consistent with these Government policies. 

 
7. A further set of hearings was then held on 30th May to consider: 

• the retail policies in the Core Strategy 
• its consistency with the Government’s Planning Policy for Traveller Sites and final 

National Planning Policy Framework 
• any other outstanding matters 

 
8. The Council was asked to prepare various sets of proposed changes to the Core 

Strategy throughout the Examination process in order to ensure its continuing soundness 
in the light of discussions at the hearings and to meet with the requirements of the 
National Planning Policy Framework following its publication by the Government. At the 
end of the Examination hearings the Inspector requested that all the proposed changes 
be incorporated within a single combined schedule and that this be published on the 
Council’s website. Officers undertook this work in June. 

 
9. At the end of the hearings the Inspector announced that he would provide the Council 

with a draft report on his findings by the end of July. This was received on 13th July and 
officers checked it for factual accuracy prior to the Inspector finalising and issuing the 
report to the Council on 26th July.  The Inspector’s Report was published on the 
Council’s website on 4th August and all Representors and stakeholders were notified at 
that time.  Copies have been made available at all borough libraries for reference and 
can also be viewed at the Planning Reception office in Uxbridge Civic Centre. 

 
Findings of the Inspector’s Report 
 
10. The Inspector’s Report includes the following key points: 
 

1. The Inspector has noted that the Council has been in an unusual position in that 
during the Examination the Government published its National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). This replaced much of the previous national framework of 
planning policy statements and also revised the form and content of local plans. The 
previous requirement to produce a suite of documents within a Local Development 
Framework was replaced. Councils are now required to produce a single local plan 
for their area.  

2. In Hillingdon’s case the Inspector has found the Core Strategy to have been prepared 
to a standard which meets the requirements of the NPPF. He does not support 
holding up its adoption as planning policy pending the preparation of the other 
remaining parts of the Plan. These comprise sets of site specific allocations and 
development management policies together with a policies map (formerly know as a 
proposals map).  

3. The Inspector has agreed that the Council should adopt the Core Strategy, 
incorporating the changes specified in his report, and that it should be published as 
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies. 

4. The Inspector has further stressed the urgency for the Council to move as quickly as 
possible to bring forward the remaining Part Two components of the Local Plan, so as 
to meet with the Government’s requirements on local plan policy preparation set out 
in the NPPF. 

5. The Inspector has supported the overall strategic approach taken in the Part One 
policies towards development in the borough over the next 15 years e.g. regarding 
the distribution of future housing development. He has emphasised the need for 

Page 253



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

regular monitoring and review of its retail and employment land provision, the latter 
being very much in a state of flux at present due to the current economic recession. 

6. Following discussions at the Examination the Inspector has supported the Council in 
reviewing its current public involvement methods detailed in its Statement of 
Community Involvement regarding the preparation of local plan documents. 

7. As regards the preparation of Part Two of the Local Plan, the Inspector has noted in 
particular, that detailed site allocations for housing should take into account local 
infrastructure provision and public transport accessibility.  A detailed site analysis will 
be required for gypsy and traveller site provision; a borough wide townscape 
character assessment will be necessary; and there should be an analysis of major 
developed sites in the Green Belt. 

 
11. The Inspector has found the Core Strategy to provide appropriate and sound policies to 

guide development in the borough over the next 15 years. He has made his decision 
based on it being amended to include the changes in the schedule published in June and 
he also emphasised that it should include two new policies which he regards as major 
changes. These involve firstly a policy stating a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, in order to comply with the requirements of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  Secondly the Inspector has concluded that a policy (policy T5) should be 
included that requires developer contributions in future to Crossrail, so as to ensure 
conformity with the London Plan.  These new policies and the associated text have been 
incorporated after para 4.34 and para 9.33 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – 
Strategic Polices (see the text highlighted in red in Appendix 1).  Whilst the Inspector 
views these as major changes, and would therefore normally require further consultation 
prior to adoption, he has stressed that there has been adequate opportunity to comment 
on those changes already during the submission and examination process and therefore 
it is unnecessary for the Council to advertise them before it proceeds to adopt the Plan. 

 
High Speed 2 
 
12. Whilst the Part One Strategic Policies have been in preparation further steps have been 

taken by the Government regarding the proposed national High Speed 2 (HS2) project. 
During the Examination the Inspector recognised that the wording in the submitted Plan 
relating to HS2 required updating. Officers included a revised section in the consolidated 
schedule of proposed changes submitted in June.  All of these changes were accepted 
by the Inspector in his report as necessary if the plan was to be subsequently adopted by 
the Council.  

 
13.  In view of the likely impacts of the HS2 proposals, officers propose that this section of 

the Local Plan Part 1 should be further amended for clarification purposes.  The 
proposed amendments, which are shown in red after paragraph 3.9 in Appendix 1, reflect 
the views of the Inspector in his Report and do not necessitate any re-consultation on the 
Plan. 

 
Adoption of Hillingdon’s Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies 
 
14. Given the above, officers have incorporated the following amendments into the Hillingdon 

Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies, as set out in Appendix 1: 
 

a) the amendments that were agreed by the Inspector during the course of the 
Examination in Public (referred to in paragraph 8 above),  

b) the two policies that were included in his Report (referred to in paragraph 11 above) 
c) the further amendments regarding HS2 (referred to in paragraph 13 above). 

 

Page 254



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

15. This report seeks Cabinet’s agreement to recommend to the next full Council that the 
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies as set out in Appendix 1 be formally 
adopted as planning policy. 

 
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two – Detailed Policies 
 
16. In light of the proposed adoption of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic 

Policies and the publication of the NPPF in March, the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
policies formally saved by the Council in 2007 now require further immediate review, to 
prevent duplication and to ensure consistency of policies.  Officers’ recommendations on 
which of the 2007 saved UDP policies can now be deleted as they are now replaced by 
the Part One policies or the NPPF are set out in Appendix 2. This report seeks Cabinet’s 
agreement to recommend to the next full Council that the remaining 2007 saved UDP 
policies be retained and adopted as the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two, pending the 
preparation and adoption of detailed site specific allocations, development management 
policies and a policies map.  

 
Next Steps 
 
17. Officers have completed preparatory work on the site specific proposals and 

development management policies required for Part Two of the Local Plan. Both the 
NPPF and the Inspector’s Report have highlighted the need to bring forward Part Two as 
quickly as possible.  As noted above, the Inspector has highlighted several items of work 
which will be required to do this: 
 
• detailed site allocations will need further analysis to ensure that housing proposals 

fully take into account local infrastructure provision and public transport accessibility;  
• detailed site analysis will be required for gypsy and traveller site provision;  
• a borough wide townscape character assessment will be necessary, which should 

also involve an analysis of suitable areas for tall building development; and  
• there should be an analysis of major developed sites in the Green Belt. 

 
18. Officers will be carrying out work in-house and commissioning further studies during the 

autumn to prepare Part Two. This is expected to include: 
 

• liaising with adjoining boroughs and district councils regarding provision for gypsies, 
travellers and travelling showpeople; 

• commissioning a study to assess townscape character areas across the borough and 
identify those areas suitable for future tall building development; 

• commissioning a study to assess the current potential for managed release of 
employment land over the next decade and beyond; and 

• reviewing the need for a further assessment of retail capacity in the borough and 
commissioning research if required.  

 
19. As work progresses on preparation of the development management policies and 
site allocations, officers expect they will also request that Members reconvene the 
Planning Working Group to guide the final drafting of policies and site proposals prior to 
initial public consultation on the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two. 

 

Page 255



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

Financial Implications 
 
There are no direct financial implications from adoption of the “Hillingdon Local Plan Part One”. 
The cost of the Planning Inspector and the process of the Examination in Public (EIP) for Part 1 
have been incurred and were budgeted for in the Council contingency.  
 
The cost of the work programme outlined above for the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2, will be 
contained within the Local Development Framework Team budget, for both the internal staffing 
resources utilised and the externally commissioned studies and research work which are 
estimated to be in the region of £50 – 60k. An allowance in the Council contingency has been 
made for the cost of further EIP’s for adoption of additional development plan documents, which 
will now be covered by the proposed Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2.  
 
4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies will provide the overarching 
development framework for the development of the borough up to 2026. It will be the key 
delivery mechanism of the Sustainable Community Strategy and will provide the context for the 
preparation of further parts of the Local Plan, including the detailed site specific allocations, 
development management policies and a policies map. The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – 
Strategic Policies will therefore have a significant impact, both short-term and long-term, upon 
residents, businesses, service users and all members of Hillingdon’s communities.   
 
Consultation Carried Out or Required 
 
The preparation of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies has involved the 
close and active involvement of Hillingdon Partners through the mechanism of an LDF Working 
Group. This Group held 5 meetings from September 2009 to January 2010 and was 
instrumental in defining the Vision, Challenges, Strategic Objectives, Key Diagram and 
emerging Core Policies of the Core Strategy.  
 
Internal ongoing involvement of key officers has taken place during the preparation of the 
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One – Strategic Policies, including the council’s Operational 
Management Group. 
 
External consultation was carried out at the various stages in its preparation as required by the 
Council’s Statement of Community Involvement, 2006. If the full Council agree to adopt the Plan 
it will then be formally published. Members should note that there will be a six-week period 
during which any final objection on legal grounds can be made to the High Court (i.e. as 
required by section 113 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004). 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Corporate Finance 
 
Corporate Finance has reviewed this report and concurs with the financial implications set out 
above, noting that costs associated with implementation of the Hillingdon Local Plan are 
expected to be contained within existing contingency budgets. 
 
In the longer-term economic development within the borough will have a significant impact upon 
the financial standing of the Council, in particular through increased tax receipts arising from a 
larger Council Tax base and the retention of growth in business rates. 
 

Page 256



Cabinet – 27 September 2012 

Legal 
 
On 6 April 2012 the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 
came into force and they updated how local councils should prepare and consult on their local 
plans. Not only did the regulations consolidate previous changes but they also simplified the 
language to be used in plan making, for example ‘local plan’ has replaced the term ‘core 
strategy’.  
 
Following the Examination in Public, the Inspector submitted a number of recommendations to 
the Council (some major and some minor changes) that, if implemented, will assist the 
Inspector in recommending adoption of the local plan pursuant to section 20 (7) of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  Although this section clarifies that local planning 
authorities are not obliged to implement the Inspector’s recommendations, failure to do so may 
leave the Inspector with little option but to recommend non-adoption, giving reasons for doing 
so.  It is therefore recommended that such amendments are included and adopted as detailed 
in the report above.  
 
One of the suggested amendments relates to High Speed Rail 2. Although the updated wording 
is arguably a main modification to the local plan content, such an amendment does not create a 
substantial change to the local plan overall and therefore does not trigger the requirement for 
re-consultation. This view was also adopted by the Inspector at the Examination in Public.   
 
Regulation 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 
details how such recommendations must be made available for inspection and published and 
officers have ensured that these requirements are adhered to.  
 
It is worthy of note that under the provisions of section 113 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004, a person may challenge the validity of the local plan or document by an 
application to the High Court on the ground that– 
(a) the document is not within the appropriate power; or 
(b) a procedural requirement has not been complied with. 
 
Such an application must be made within a period of six weeks from the date of adoption of the 
plan or document.  
 
Property and Construction 
 
The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies does not contain any specific policy or site 
proposals relating to council land or property. Strategic Policies apply generally to all land and 
property in the borough regardless of ownership. The strategy, including the Infrastructure Plan, 
has been prepared within the context of the council’s asset management plan. In general terms 
the Plan aims to safeguard property assets in public service or community use. It also helps to 
identify opportunities where services need to expand, for example to respond to demographic 
changes. However in circumstances where community services need to be rationalised, the 
effect of planning policy may tend towards the retention of community facilities, which may at 
times restrict sales of surplus Council assets for residential development. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: Cabinet report in July 2011: Hillingdon Local Development Framework Pre-submission 
Draft Core Strategy; Full Council report in September 2011: Hillingdon Local Development Framework Pre-
Submission Draft Core Strategy 
 

APPENDIX 1 – LOCAL PLAN – PART 1, STRATEGIC POLICIES – NOT REPRODUCED 
HERE AS NOW REPLACED BY UPDATED VERSION AVAILABLE ON LINE AND IN 
GROUP OFFICES 

Page 257



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

Appendix 2 – Proposed Policies for Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two 
 
Part 2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan will contain detailed local policies on design and land use required to determine planning 
applications and appeals. It will comprise sets of boroughwide development management policies and site development proposals 
together with a new proposals map (now known as a “policies map”). Pending its preparation and adoption the majority of the 2007 
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies are to continue to be used for determining planning applications. 
 
Following adoption of the 2011 London Plan and introduction by the Government of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) in March 2012 the following 2007 policies are to be deleted: 
 

Policies to be deleted Reason 
Pt 1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature of the area. Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 

Part 1 policy EM2 
Pt 1.2 To maintain Metropolitan Open Land for formal and informal open air recreation facilities including 
nature conservation. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM2 

Pt 1.4 To safeguard a network of Green Chains from built development to provide a visual and physical 
break in the built-up area and opportunities for recreation and corridors for wildlife. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM2 

Pt 1.6 To safeguard the nature conservation value of Sites of Special Scientific Interest, Sites of 
Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation, designated Local Nature Reserves or other Nature 
Reserves, or sites proposed by English Nature or the Local Authority for such designations. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM7 

Pt 1.7 To promote the conservation, protection and enhancement of the archaeological heritage of the 
Borough. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy HE1 

Pt 1.8 To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to their special 
architectural and visual qualities. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy HE1 

Pt 1.9 To seek to preserve statutory Listed Buildings and buildings on the Local List. Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy HE1 

Pt 1.10 To seek to ensure that new development will not adversely affect the amenity and character of 
the Borough’s residential areas 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy BE1 

Pt 1.12 To avoid any unacceptable risk of flooding to new development in areas already liable to flood, 
or increased severity of flooding elsewhere. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM6 

Pt 1.13 To seek to ensure the provision of 8,000 additional dwellings in the Borough between l January 
1987 and 31 December 2001. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy H1 

Pt 1.14 To not normally grant planning permission for a change from residential use. Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy H1 

Pt 1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and mobility 
standards. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy BE1 

P
age 259



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

Policies to be deleted Reason 
Pt 1.17 To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of new dwellings are provided in the form of 
affordable housing. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy H2 

Pt 1.18 To maintain, enhance and promote town centres as the principal centres for shopping, 
employment and community and cultural activities in the Borough. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy E5 

Pt 1.19 To maintain a hierarchy of shopping centres which maximises accessibility to shops and to 
encourage retail development in existing centres or local parades which is appropriate to their scale and 
function and not likely to harm the viability and vitality of town or local centres. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy E5 

Pt 1.27 To ensure that development at Heathrow Airport for airport purposes mitigates or redresses any 
adverse effects on the environment. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy E3 / T4 

Pt 1.29 To seek, in conjunction with other London boroughs, to contribute a proportion of the regional 
sand and gravel requirement and London-wide landbank, and to protect the amenities of those living, 
working and recreating in and travelling through that part of the Borough south of the M4 motorway from 
an over-concentration of aggregate working. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM9 / EM10 

Pt 1.31 To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local services, 
including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to all, including people with 
disabilities or other mobility handicaps. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy E5 / Cl 1 / Cl 2 / Cl 3 

Pt 1.32 To encourage development for uses other than those providing local services to locate in places 
which are accessible by public transport. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy T1 

Pt 1.36 In consultation with public transport operators to improve facilities at bus and rail interchanges, 
and in consultation with LT and bus operators to promote traffic management measures which give 
priority to buses. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy T2 / T3 

OL11 Green Chains. Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM2 

EC1 Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation importance and nature 
reserves. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM7 

BE2 Scheduled ancient monuments. Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy HE1 

MIN2 Proposals to work sand and gravel in relation to regional requirements and London-wide 
Landbank. 

Replaced by Hillingdon Local Plan 
Part 1 policy EM10 

 

P
age 260



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

The following 2007 Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies are to be retained and adopted as Part 2 of the Hillingdon 
Local Plan and used for determining planning applications: 
 
Pt 1.3  To seek greater public access to the countryside for informal leisure activities. 
Pt 1.5  To carry out and promote countryside management projects to improve the environment and nature conservation value of 

countryside and open land, particularly in areas which are degraded or derelict and important corridors along roads and 
watercourses. 

Pt 1.11  To facilitate the development of telecommunications networks in a manner that minimises the environmental and amenity impact of 
structures and equipment. 

Pt 1.15  To enable the conversion of residential properties to create more units, provided the additional units are suitable to live in and the 
character of the area and amenities of adjoining occupiers are not harmed. 

Pt 1.20  To give priority to retail uses at ground floor level in the Borough’s shopping areas. 
Pt 1.21  To seek publicly accessible recreational open space in association with proposals for development where appropriate to help reduce 

deficiencies in recreation open space or to ensure that provision does not fall below accepted standards. 
Pt 1.22  To seek the retention of existing recreation open space where there is an identified demand for such a facility or it makes a 

significant contribution to the visual amenity of the built up area. 
Pt 1.23  To encourage industry and warehousing to locate within existing Industrial and Business areas, and offices and other business 

uses, shops and public buildings employing or  attracting large numbers of people to locate within town centres or other areas 
identified for such purposes. 

Pt 1.24  To reserve designated Industrial and Business Areas as the preferred locations for industry and warehousing. 
Pt 1.25  To encourage the provision of small industrial, warehousing and business units within designated Industrial and Business Areas. 
Pt 1.26  To encourage economic and urban regeneration in the Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, designated Industrial and Business Areas 

(IBAs) and other appropriate locations. 
Pt 1.28  To encourage the provision of a range of hotel and conference facilities provided development does not harm the environment. 
Pt 1.30  To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in particular women, elderly people, people with 

disabilities and ethnic minorities. 
Pt 1.33  To promote the construction of new roads or the widening of existing roads only where they would: improve safety; promote 

pedestrian movement, cycling or public transport, or the improvement of the environment; reduce local congestion in a cost effective 
way; or are required to accommodate traffic likely to be generated by new development. 

Pt 1.34  To maintain the road hierarchy set out in this Plan and accordingly seek to segregate different types of traffic by the function of the 
various tiers of the hierarchy through traffic management schemes, road signing and planning control over development and 
redevelopment schemes. 

Pt 1.35  To accord priority to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road construction and traffic management schemes, and to 
seek to provide a network of cycle routes through the Borough to promote safer cycling and better conditions for cyclists. 

Pt 1.37  To facilitate the development and transport interchange facilities and rail and road improvements at Hayes Hub, which promote 
competitiveness, economic regeneration and environmental quality of the Hayes/West Drayton Corridor. 

Pt 1.38  To seek a reduction in road accident casualties through highway improvements including traffic calming and the design of new 
highway schemes. 

P
age 261



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

Saved UDP Policy 
Pt 1.39  To seek, where appropriate, planning obligations to achieve benefits to the community related to the scale and type of development 

proposed. 
3. Open Land and Countryside 
OL1 Green Belt – acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development. 
OL2 Green Belt – landscaping improvements. 
OL4 Green Belt – replacement or extension of buildings. 
OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt. 
OL9 Areas of Environmental Opportunity - condition and use of open land. 
OL12 Development of agricultural land. 
OL13 Development associated with agricultural or forestry uses within or affecting conservation areas, archaeological priority areas etc. 
OL14 Change of use or conversion of redundant agricultural buildings  
OL15 Protection of Countryside Conservation Areas. 
OL19 Access to and use of the countryside by all sections of the community. 
OL21 Proposals to reclaim/restore damaged, derelict or otherwise degraded land. 
OL22 Proposals for damaged, derelict or otherwise degraded land – assessment of current condition and adverse effects. 
OL23 Restoration/reclamation of damaged, derelict or otherwise degraded land – provision for aftercare. 
OL26 Protection and enhancement of trees, woodland and landscape features. 
4. Ecology and Nature Conservation 
EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments. 
EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance. 
EC4 Monitoring of existing sites of nature conservation importance and identification of new sites. 
EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats. 
EC6 Retention of wildlife habitats on derelict or vacant land. 
olicy 
BE1 Development within archaeological priority areas. 
BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological remains 
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas. 
BE5 New development within areas of special local character. 
BE6 New development within Gate Hill Farm and Copsewood Estates areas of special local character. 
BE7 Development schemes on the southeast side of Ducks Hill Road. 
BE8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings. 
BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions. 
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building. 
BE11 Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings. 
BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed buildings. 
BE13 Layout and appearance of new development. 
BE14 Development of sites in isolation. 

P
age 262



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings. 
BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety. 
BE19 New development within residential areas – complementing and improving amenity and character of the area. 
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations. 
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions. 
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys. 
BE23 External amenity space and new residential development. 
BE24 Design of new buildings – protection of privacy. 
BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas.  
BE26 Town centres – design, layout and landscaping of new buildings. 
BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location. 
BE28 Shop fronts – design and materials. 
BE29 Advertisement displays on business premises. 
BE30 Advertisement hoardings enclosing sites under construction. 
BE31 Facilities for the recreational use of the canal. 
BE32 Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal. 
BE33 Proposals for the establishment of residential moorings. 
BE34 Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on rivers. 
BE35 Major development proposals adjacent to or visible from major road and rail connections to Heathrow and central London. 
BE36 Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas. 
BE37 Telecommunications developments – siting and design. 
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features, and provision of new planting and landscaping in developments proposals. 
BE39 Protection of trees and woodland – tree preservation orders. 
6. Other Environmental Considerations 
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local area. 
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance – mitigation measures. 
OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments. 
OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding – requirement for flood protection measures. 
OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water run-off – requirement for attenuation measures. 
OE9 Limitation of development in areas with a potential for sewerage flooding. 
OE10 Phasing of development in areas of potential flooding or inadequate sewerage capacity. 
OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land – requirement for ameliorative measures. 
7. Housing 
H1 Sites safeguarded for residential development. 
H2 Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties. 
H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation. 
H4 Mix of housing units. 
H5 Dwellings suitable for large families. 

P
age 263



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units. 
H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential. 
H10 Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of care. 
H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas. 
 
S6 Change of use of shops – safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas. 
S7 Change of use of shops in Parades. 
S9 Change of use of shops in Local Centres. 
S10 Change of use of shops in Local Centres – criteria for permitting changes of use outside core areas. 
S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas. 
S12 Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas. 
. Recreation, Leisure and Community Facilities 
R1 Development proposals in or near areas deficient in recreational open space. 
R2 Provision of recreation, entertainment and leisure facilities in Town Centres. 
R3 Indoor sports, leisure and entertainment facilities. 
R4 Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space. 
R5 Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community, religious, cultural or entertainment facilities. 
R6 Ancillary recreational facilities. 
R7 Provision of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment activities. 
R8 Loss of facilities which support arts, cultural and entertainment activities. 
R9 Proposals for the use of buildings for religious and cultural purposes. 
R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community and health services. 
R11 Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for education, social, community and health services. 
R12 Use of premises to provide child care facilities. 
R13 Use of residential accommodation for educational and child care premises. 
R14 Provision child care facilities in shopping and other large developments. 
R15 Use of residential accommodation for medical/health care facilities. 
R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children. 
R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and community facilities. 
0. The Local Economy 
LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development. 
LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas. 
LE3 Provision of small units in designated Industrial and Business Areas. 
LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and Business Areas. 
LE6 Major officer and other business proposals in town centres. 
LE7 Provision of planning benefits from industry, warehousing and business development. 
1. Airports and Aviation 
A1 Proposals for development which extend Heathrow Airport on land to the north of Bath Road or otherwise increase runway capacity. 

P
age 264



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

A2 Developments at Heathrow airport likely to increase demand for off-airport development or have significant adverse environmental impact. 
A3 Development at Northolt Aerodrome. 
A4 New development directly related to Heathrow Airport. 
A5 New development at airports - incorporation of ancillary retail and leisure facilities and other services. 
A6 Development proposals within the public safety zones around Heathrow or likely to affect the operation of Heathrow or Northolt airports. 
12. Tourism 
T2 Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities. 
T4 Hotels, guesthouses and other tourist accommodation – location, amenity and parking requirements. 
13. Minerals and Waste Disposal 
MIN1 Safeguarding of sand and gravel reserves. 
MIN3 Restriction on area of land south of the M4 motorway subject to planning consent for sand and gravel extraction and/or waste disposal. 
MIN4 Restriction on the release of good agricultural land for mineral working and requirement for restoration. 
MIN5 Phased release of agricultural land for mineral extraction/disposal of waste where requirements of policy MIN4 have been met. 
MIN6 Consideration of impact on farming of proposals for mineral extraction/disposal of waste. 
MIN7 Restoration of good agricultural land following mineral extraction. 
MIN8 Restoration of land south of the A4020 Uxbridge Road. 
MIN9 Restoration of land north of the A4020 Uxbridge Road. 
MIN10 Restoration and after-use of sand and gravel workings in the Colne Valley. 
MIN11 After-use of mineral sites – landscaping and screening. 
MIN12 Proposals for extraction of clay or brickearth. 
MIN14 Proposals for mineral extraction in locations of archaeological importance. 
MIN15 Proposals for ready mix concrete plants. 
MIN16 Waste recycling and disposal – encouragement of efficient and environmentally acceptable facilities. 
MIN17 Proposals for concrete crushing/soil screening plants. 
MIN18 Safeguarding of existing civic amenity and waste transfer sites. 
MIN19 Use of Category A waste for restoration of sand and gravel pits. 
MIN20 Proposals involving landfilling, re-working or disturbance of old landfill sites –gas control and monitoring requirements. 
MIN21 Impact of development proposals involving landfilling on the local hydrogeological regime – requirement for monitoring and mitigation 
measures. 
MIN23 Schemes for mineral extraction, mineral processing, landfill, waste handling or treatment adjacent to noise-sensitive locations – noise 
monitoring and control requirements. 
MIN24 Sites for aggregates depots – access, location and amenity considerations. 
MIN25 Safeguarding of operational rail aggregates depot facilities. 
MIN26 Environmental up-grading of aggregates depots. 
MIN27 Support for temporary rail-served aggregates depots for major construction projects. 
14. Accessibility and Movement 
AM1 Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking distance based catchment area – public transport accessibility and capacity 
considerations. 

P
age 265



Cabinet 27 September 2012  

AM2 Development proposals – assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion and public transport availability and capacity. 
AM3 Proposals for new roads or widening of existing roads. 
AM4 Safeguarded road proposals -schemes shown on Proposals Map. 
AM5 Land safeguarded for road proposals of the Department of Transport and the Traffic Director for London. 
AM6 Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access Roads by through traffic. 
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments. 
AM8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road construction and traffic management schemes. 
AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists’ needs in design of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities. 
AM10 Incorporation in new developments of additions to the proposed cycle network. 
AM11 Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus and rail interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure 
improvement in public transport services. 
AM12 Promotion of traffic management measures which give priority to buses. 
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where 
appropriate): - i. Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services 
 ii. Shopmobility schemes 
 iii. Convenient parking spaces 
 iv. Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes 
AM14 New development and car parking standards. 
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons. 
AM16 Availability for public use of parking spaces in commercial developments in town centres and other areas. 
AM17 Provision of short stay off-street parking space for town centres. 
AM18 Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal – securing facilities for canal borne freight. 
5. Proposals 
PR2 Western Core Area, Hayes. 
PR4 Thorn EMI Complex, Blyth Road, Hayes. 
PR8 RAF West Drayton. 
PR10 Powergen/Bulls Bridge Site, North Hyde Gardens, Hayes. 
PR16 Coppermill, Harefield. 
PR19 Breakspear House, Breakspear Road North, Harefield. 
PR20 Harefield Hospital. 
PR21 Hillingdon Hospital. 
PR22 Brunel University 
PR23 Hillingdon Circus 

P
age 266



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

 
8.1 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR GARDNER TO THE CABINET 

MEMBER FOR SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH & HOUSING – COUNCILLOR 
CORTHORNE 

 
In view of the declining amount of affordable decent housing for Hillingdon residents 
across the whole Borough, will the Cabinet Member responsible put 'residents first' 
and support the National Housing Federation's "Yestohomes campaign" for more 
council housing and in doing so agree to examine the possibilities of providing 
affordable decent housing across the whole borough, in a housing programme that 
will secure affordable decent homes for Hillingdon residents and their families and 
give the council a financial return on its investment and provide jobs and training for 
its unemployed residents? 
 

8.2 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR DUNCAN TO THE CABINET 
MEMBER FOR FINANCE, PROPERTY AND BUSINESS SERVICES – 
COUNCILLOR BIANCO 

 
In view of the high costs of consultants employed by the Council, particularly during 
the past two years, can we see a breakdown of the financial justification for these 
high costs, especially when the improvements made are often the result of existing 
managers’ suggestions, which could be listened to at no cost? 

 
8.3 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR BLISS TO THE CABINET MEMBER 

FOR EDUCATION AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES – COUNCILLOR SIMMONDS 
 
Can the Cabinet Member for Education tell us what provision for secondary 
education is being made for the increased intake of children now being 
accommodated in expanded primary schools, particularly in the south of the 
borough where the major increase has occurred and where more high density 
family housing is being built and proposed, placing further pressure on education 
places? 
 

8.4 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR ALLEN TO THE CABINET MEMBER 
FOR SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH & HOUSING – COUNCILLOR CORTHORNE 

 
Can the Cabinet Member for Social Services, Health and Housing update the 
Council about how things are progressing with Recommendation 1 from the 
Council’s Dementia Working Group report? This is concerned with dementia and 
the memory clinic. 
 
For clarification – Recommendation 1, as adopted by Cabinet in April 2012, is set 
out below: 
 
To ensure timely assessment, diagnosis and treatment of dementia, Cabinet 
requests that NHS Hillingdon and the Local Clinical Commissioning Group be asked 
to explore the expansion of memory clinic services in Hillingdon and that this be 

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS  

Agenda Item 8

Page 267



Council Meeting – 08 November 2012 

done on a multi-disciplinary, multi-agency basis, reporting back to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

 
8.5 QUESTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR DHILLON TO THE CABINET 

MEMBER FOR IMPROVEMENT, PARTNERSHIPS AND COMMUNITY SAFETY – 
COUNCILLOR D.MILLS 

 
Could the Cabinet Member please inform Council if the current performance levels 
(calls answered / abandoned / customer satisfaction) of the contact centre have 
increased or decreased whilst outsourcing via consultants is explored? 

Page 268


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Public Question Time
	6 Report of the Head of Democratic Services
	121108 - 06 - report of head of DS appa
	121108 - 06 - Report of Head of Dem Services appB

	7 Hillingdon Local Plan
	121108 - 07 - local plan app A to council report
	121108 - 07 - local plan document
	121108 - 07 - local plan app B original report
	121108 - 07 - local plan app B app 2

	8 Members' Questions

